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EP"HIJH!^"ZJ$"#H,"93$;"8[S

IndeDendetrt Auditors' ReDort on Basic Financial Statemelts atrd SuDDlementarv Schedule of

ExDe[ditures of Federal Awards

The Honomble Mayor, Members

ofthe Municipal Legislature and

People of the Municipalit) of Aibonito,
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the goverrunental acJivities- the business-

t,;p. ;"ti"i i"t, 
"*1, -ajor fund, an-d the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of

Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico lthe Municipality), as of and for the fiscal year ended

June30,2012,whichcollectivelycomprisetheMunicipality'sbasicfinancialstateme[tsaslistedinthe
u"colnpunying tutt" of 

"oot"nts. 
Th".i financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's

rn*ug'"."olb", t"tponsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit'

Except as discussed in the following paragraphs' we conducted our audit in accordance *ith auditing

,tuni*d. g"o".utty accepted in the UniteJstates of America and the standards applicable to financial

uuait. 
"oiuin"a 

it Goternment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United

States of America. Those standa.ds reqluire that te plan alrd perform the audit to obtain reasonable

a..*an"" ubout *'hether the financial statements are iree of material misstatement An audit includes

examinilg,onatestbasis,evidencesupportingtheamountsanddisclosuresinthefinancialstatements'
An audit 

"also 
includes assessing the acio'-rnting principles used and the significant estimates made by

-u.ug",n"ot, u, *"11us evaluati-ng the overall linancial itatement presentation We believe that our audit

pro\ ides a reasonable basis for our opinions

As discussed in Note 1, the Municipality did not have complete and accurate accounting records of its

""pi,"f "rr"i. ""q"i,"d 
or constructed before January 9, 2009 In addition, the Municipality did not

;;;;; phy;";l inventory of such capital assets during rhe- las five fiscal years' which ultimatelv

ifects the vaiuation ofsuch assets at Juni 30, 2012. Accordingly, we could not apply adequate auditing

f.o""a*", to ascertain the existence, valuation and ownership of those capital assets rccorded in the

I"""-p-vi.g u","-ent ofnet assets for $23,905,732, net ofaccumulated depreciation of$15'028'774'

As discussed in Note 7, the other (nonmajor) goverrurental funds ofthe Mr'rnicipality reportel:s^q1I ol
its assets, the balances due from other governirental funds amounting to $1'901'445 at June 30' 2012 of

which $1,900,7i1 represent unsuppo;ed inter-fund loans carried over from January 9' 2009 without

t.i.g *ii*t"d. The l'tunicipalitlidid not have complete and accumte accounting records of inter-fund

balaices recorded in books on oibefore January 9, 2b09, including a sr-rbsidiary record documentiag the

collection procedures made by management and the repaymentand other terms and conditions of inter-

fund loans. transfers and reimbursements among govemmental funds These conditions raise substantial

doubts about the existence and valuation of a portion of the other (nonmajor) govemmental funds'

Po. 8ox I915O3, Son JLron, tuedo Rbo m9l9_l503 TEL. 787'603_1600



uncollected inter-fund advances arnounting to $1,900,733 at June 30, 2012 The ultimate outcome of

tfr" 
"*lri"o"", 

,uf*tion and collectibility ; the aiorementioned inter-fund advances cannot presently be

determined.

In our opinion, except for the matters discussed in the preceding paragraphs,. the financial statements

."fa."a i" abore present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the govemmental

u"iirlii"., 
"u"f, -u;o, govemmental fund and the aggregate remaining govemmental fund information of

the Municipality of eiUooito, Common*ealth of Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2012, in confomity with

accounting pdnciples generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica'

Also, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

i*-"iur poriiior, ttt" changes in financial position and cash flows ofthe business{ype activities of the

Municipiity of Aibonito, Commonwealth of Puerto fuco, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective

"fr-g"i 
in'nn-"iuf position, and cash flow thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

In accordance with Govenment Auditing standards we have also issued our report dated December 5,

2012, on our consideration of the Mu;icipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

intemal control over finan ial reporting and on our tests of its compliance u'ith certain provisions of

laws, regulations, contacts, gralt agreements and other matters. The pr:tpose of that report is io

desciibe'the scope of our tesiing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinioo on the intemal control over flnancial rcporting and

or on compliance. ihat report is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance with Govemment

Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results ofour audit-

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica require that the Management's

Discussion- and Analyiis and Budgitary Comparison lnformation on pages 4 through 19 and 74 be

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although l1ot a pan ofihe
Lasic financial statements, is required by the GoverDmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers

it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required

"ippt"."ntury 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

Staies of Arnerica, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the

infomation and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our

inquiries, the basic financiai statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assuance on the infomation because

the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide aly

assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as a whole The accompanying

schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required

by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits o.f States-and Local Go''ernments'

arut Non-Pr,,Jit Organiitions, and is also not a required parr of the basic financial statements of the

Municipality. The Schedule of Expenditures and Federal Awards is the responsibility of management

and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare

the filancial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit ofthe firancial statements and certain additional procedures. including comparing and reconciling

such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial

E BENITEZ-]AIME, CPA-PSC



statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. In our opinion, the information is

fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a *hole.

December 5- 2012
Toa AIta, Puerto Rico

Stamp No. 2596751
was affixed to the
original report.

W- fs'

E BENITEZ.JAIMX, CPA.PSC
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MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
CoMMo\'\ f,ALTH oE PUERTo RJCo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012

As management of the Municipality of Aibonito (the Municipality), we offer readers the
following discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial activities reported in the
accompanying basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional info.mation that
is fumished in the accompanying financial statements, which follow this narrative.

As more fully described in Note l, On Jul) l, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Wether Certain ()rganizations are Component Units - an
Anendme t of GASB Statement No. 14 (GASB No. 39). Based on the criteria established by
GASB No. 39, the Municipality's management concluded that there are no legally separate
entities or organizations that should be reported as component units ofthe Municipality as ofand
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Therefore, Las Flores Apartments (FmHA and HUD
Proj ect No. 63 -00 5-660-43 -J 5 72) was reported as a business-type activity and not as a component
unit ofthe Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

FINANCL{L HIGHLIGHTS

G ov emment-Wide Hig h lig hls :

o The Municipality's total assets amounted to $63,402,475 at June 30, 2012, of which
$43,911,708 (6970) consist of capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization of $18,326,493), $15,489,752 (25%) consist of cash and cash equivalents, (of
which $11,964,021 are restricted for specific purposes), $3,491,410 (5o%) consist ofaccounts
receivable, net ofthe reserve for doubtful account, and $509.605 (l %) consist of other assets-

. The Municipaliry's total liabilities amounted to $19,178,159 at June 30, 2012, of which
$12,666,520 consist of bonds and notes payable, $2,350,923 consist of uneamed revenues,
$2,80i,3i9 consist of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and $1,340,621 consist of
accrued compensated absences.

. The Municipaliry's assets exceeded its Iiabilities (net assets/surplus) by $44,224,316 at June
30.2012.

r The Municipality's total revenues amounted to $18,510,337 for the fiscal year ended June
30,2012, ofwhich $5,6E7,085 arose from ta-xes,910,613,572 arose from intergovemmental
grants and contributions, and $2,209,680 arose from charges for services, interest on deposits
and miscellaneous revenues,

. The Municipality's expenses amounted to $12,244,'732 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, of which $6,301,379 where incuned in providing dir€ct services and benefits to
citizens in relation to urban and economic development, h€aith and sanitation, public safety,
public housing and welfare, and cultue, recreation and education. In addition, the
Municipality incuned $404,190 of its total expenses, in interests related to its long{erm
obligations, and $5,519,163 in general govemment activities to support the Municipality's
functions and programs. The Municipaliry's expenses include depreciation in the amount of
$1,987,793, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

coMMoNwEALTH oF PUERTo tuco
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

. The Municipality's net assets increas€d by $6,265,605 during the fiscal year ended June 30'

2012.

Gover mer,tdl Funb' High|ights:

. The total firnd balance ofgovemmental funds amounted to $13,320,713 at June 30, 2012, of

*f,i"l, iofs,O:g is assien;, $12,638,838 is restricted, and $6,837 represents an unassigred

balance.

. The total fund balances of govemmental funds decreased by $3,049,325 during the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2012.

Ptup elary Fund Eighlights:

. The total restricted fund net assets of the proprietary fund amounted to $ I ,522,469, of which

$962.410 are invested in capital assets, n;t ofrelated debt, while $560'059 are restricted for

the operations offederally funded progiams.

. The total restricted fund net assets of the proprietary fund decreased by $9,609 during the

fiscal year erded June 30, 2012

O\'ERVIEW OF TEE BASIC FINAIICIAL STATEMf,NTS

The purpose of financial reporting is to provide extemal users of basic financial statements with

informaiion that will help them to mak; decisions or draw conclusions about the Municipality'

There are many extemal parties that use the basic financ;al statements of the Municipality;

however, these parties do not always have the same specific objectives. In order to address the

needs of as many parties as reasonably possible, the Munic;pality, in accordance with required

financial reporting standards, presents this Managem€nt's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) as

an introaluciion to the accompanying basic financial statements. This narrative represents an

overview and analysis ofthe dnanciai activities ofthe Municipality for the fiscal year ended June

30.2012. Because this MD&A is designed to focus on the corrent year activities' resulting

changes and cunently known facts, we enio,rrage readers to consider the information presented in

this i4o&A in conjunction with the additional inrormation fumished in the accompanying basic

financial statements,

The Municipality's basic financial statements include three components: (1) govemment-wide

financial staltements (GWFS), (2) fund financial statements (FFS), and (3) notes 
-to 

the basic

financial statements (NgfS). fhi. report also contains additional required information in

addition to the basic financiai statements ihemselves. These components are described t'elow-

The basic financial statements focus on: (1) the Municipatity as a whole (govemment-wide

financiat reporting) and, (2) the Municipality's major individual govemmental and proprietary

funds. Both p".-rp""tiu"i allow the uslrs io address relevant questions, broaden a hasis for

comparison (year to year or govemment to government) and enhance the Municipality's

accountabiliry. The components ofthe bas;c financial statements are described below

5



MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMONWEALTH OFPUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

a) Gowmment-aride Financial SlElemenls

The GWFS are composed of: (l) the statements ofnet assets (SNA) and (2) the statement of
activities (SA). These financial statements can be found immediately following thjs MD&A'

GWFS aie iesigned to provide readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's

operations as a whole in a manner similar to private-sector business These statements

piovide short-term and long-term information about the Municipality's financial position,

which assist the Municipality's management to determine the economic condilion at June 30,

2012. The GWFS are prepared using methods that arc similar to those used by most private

businesses.

Both of the govemment-w;de financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality

that are priicipally supported by ta,\es and intergovemmental activities @ouqnnental
aclilr'ries) from oth;r funitions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion oftheir

costs through user fees and charges (r&ti,?ess-rype activities).

1. Statement ofNet Assets

The purpose ofSNA is to attempt to report all assets owned a'd all liabilities owed by the

Municiiality. The Municipality reports of all of its assets when it acquircs ownership

over the asiets and reports all of its liabilities when they are incuned For example, the

Municipality reports buildings and inftastructure as assets! even though they are not

availabie to pay the obligati;ns incurred by the Municipality On the other hand, the

Municipality reports liabilities, such as claims and judgments, bonds and notes payable'

obligations undir capital leases, comp€nsated absences and certain alcounts .payable 
and

accied liabilities, even though these liabilities might not be paid until seveml fiscal years

into the future.

The difference between the MuniciPality's total assets and total liabilities rcported in

SNA is presented as ,rel arsers, which is sim;lar to the total owners' equity reported by a

"o..",ai"l 
enterprise in its financial statements. Although the purpose of the

Municipality is not to accumulate net assets, as this amount increases or decreases over

time, s;ch amount represents a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the

Municipality is either improving or deteriorating, respectively.

2. Strtement of Activitres

The SA presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets changed during

the fiscai year ended June 30, 2012, by presenting all ofthe Municipality'srevenues and

expenses. As previously discussed, the items reported in SA are measured in a manner

similar to the approach used by a commercial enterprise in that rcvenues are recognized

when earned oi established criteria are satisfied, and expenses are recorded when

incurred by the Municipalit). Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may

not be coilected for several months after the end of the fiscal year and expenses are

recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current year'

A,though SA looks different from a commercial enterprise's income statement, the

differen'ce is only in format, not substance. Whereas the bottom line in a commercial

6



b)

MUNICIPALITY OT AIBONITO
COMNIONWf, ALTH OT PUf, RTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012

enterprise represents its net income, the Municipality reports an amount describ€d as 'e'
chatge ifi net assets,.''hich is essentially the same concept

The focus ofSA is on the ,eI corr ofvarious activities provided by the Municipality. The

statement b€gins with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Municipality's

major functions. Another column identifies the revenues that are specifically related to

the classified govemmental functions. The difference between the expenses and revenues

related to specific functions/programs identifies the extent to which each function of the

Municipality draws from general revenues or is self-financing through fees,

intergovemmental aid, and other sources ofresources.

This statement also presents a compariion between direct expenses and Program revenues

for each function ofthe Municipality.

GWFS and GFFS present all of the Municipality's govemmental activiti€s, which are

supported mostly by ta-\es and intergovemmental revenues (such as federal and state grants

and contributions). All services normally associated with the Municipality fall into this

category, including culture, recreation and education; geneml govemmenl; h€alth and

saniiation; public safety; public housing and welfare; and economic and urban development'

Fund Firra cial Stalenents

The Municipality's FFS consist of: (l) the balance sheet govemmental funds, (2) the

statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental firnds, (3)

the stalement of net asseis - proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses and

changes in fund net assets -proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows -
propr:ietary firnd. These financial statements report the financial position, the 

-results 
of

operationi and cash flows ofthe Municipality's govemmental and proprietary funds, with an

emphasis on the Municipality's major govemmental and proprietary funds

A fund is a $ouping of rclated accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that

hare been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like most other

state and loc;l gor"an*"nta, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance

with finance-relited legal requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity

accounted for within a set of setf-baiancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund

equity, rcvenue, and expenditures. Fund accounting segregates funds according to iheir

iniended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with legal'

financial andcontractual provisions. All ofthe funds ofthe Municipality can be divided into

two categories: govemmental funds and Foprietary funds.

1- Govemmental funds

Govemmental funds are used to account for most of the services provided by the

Municipality. These funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported

as govemmental activities in the CWFS Unlike GWFS, the focus ofgovemmental funds

in the FFS is alirected to specific activities of the Municipality mther than the

Municipality as a whole; therefore, govemmental funds in FFS report the Municipality's

operat;ons in more delail than the GWFS.

7



MUNICIPALITY oF AIBONTTO
CONINIONVEALTH oF PUERTo RIco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Covemmental funds in FFS provide a detailed short-term view of the Municipality's
finances that assist in detemining wheth€r there will be adequate financial resources

available to meet the current needs of the Municipaliq, which is, evaluating the
Municipality's near-term financing requirements. For financial reporting purposes, the

Municipatiq classifies its govemmental funds within the following rypes: (l) general

fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) special rcvenue funds, (4) capital projects funds and (5)
permanent funds-

Govemmental funds FFS are prepared on an accounting basis tlEt is significantly
difl€rent from that used to prepare GWFS. [n general, govemmental funds FFS focus on

near-term inflows and oudlows of expendable financial resources, consequently, they

mezlsure and account for cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash. For

example, amounts reported on the balance sheet include capital assets within a very short

period of time, but do not include capital assets such as land and buildings.
Covemmental fund liabilities generally include amounts that normally are going to be

paid within a short period after the end of the fiscal year. The differcnce between a
fund's total assets and total Iiabilities is reported as the fund balaDce or deficit, and

generally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activities.
Likewise, the operating stalement for govemmental funds reports only those revenues

and expenditures that were collected in cash or paid with cash, respectively, du ng the

cunent fiscal year or very shortly after the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of govemmental funds FFS is narrower than that of the GWFS, it is

useftll to compare the fund information presented for govemmental funds w;th similar
information presented for govemmental activities in the GWFS. By doing so, readers

may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near-term financial
decisions. Bcth the govemmental funds' balance sheet and the govemmental funds'
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a

reconciliation to facilitate the comparison bet\,,een govemmental funds and the

govemmental activities reported in the govemment-wide financial statements.

The Municipality has five major govemmental funds. Each major fund is presented in a
separate column in the balance sheet - govemmental funds and the statement ofrcvenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances govemmental funds. Ihe five major
govemmeotal funds are: (l) general fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) capital projects fund,
(4) legislative j oint resolutions fund, and (5) special communities trust fuod.

Proprietary fund

The proprietary fund is a fund used to report the financial position, results of operation

and cash flous of Las Flores Apartments (FmHA and Hud Prcject No. 63-005-66033-
1572). Is a housing development consisting ofone hundred (100) dwelling units located

in Aibonito. The project is owned by the Municipality, but its operations are carried out
by a private management agent unrelated to the Municipality. The housing development
proiect of Las Flores Apartments has been designed to assist various segments of the
general public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The project
op€rates under financing through the Section 8 New Construction and Substantial
Rehabilitation Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and U$an Development and



c)

MUNICIPALITY oF AIBONITO
CoMtIoNVEALTH oF PUERTo RICo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2012

the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Program of the U.S. Department of
Agriculture. The purpose of Las Flores Apartments is to provide adequate housing to
low-income rcsidents of the Municipaliry.

Th€ activities of Las Flores Apartmelts have been reported as a prcprietary fund in the

accompanying basic financial statements since GAAP pemits the use of enterprise funds
to report any activity for which a fee is charged to extemal users of Soods or senices,
regardless of whether the govemment intends to firlly recover the cost of the goods or
services provided. Thus, it is common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for
services where the govemment intends to recover only a portion of its costs through fees

or user charges.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the GWFS, but in more detail.

Notes to Basic Financial Stolernenls

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding ofthe data

provided in the GWFS and GFFS. The NBFS can be found immediately following the basic

financial statements.

Othe t S uppleme nlary Inforrrratiotl

The basic financial statements are followed by a section ofothe. supplementary information
consisting of: (1) budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards.

This Space Has Been Intentionally Left Blank

d)
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MUNTclPALITY oF AIBoNITo
CoMMoN.T EALTH oF PUERTo Rrco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GO\ERNMf,NT-WDE FDIAI[CIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipality's overall financial position and operations for the prior and the current fiscal
year are summarized as follows, based on the information included in the accompan),ing GWFS:

Condensed Statement ofNet Assets

Governmental Activities
.lune 30-2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Assets:

Current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities

Long-term obligations due within one year

Long-term obligations due after one year
Total liahilities

Nel assets (dertc ):
Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt
Restricted

Unrestricted, as restated

Total net assets

19,01 r,904 21,254,045

37.162,47043,911,708

478,863 131.677

63,102,475 59,148,192

5,152,262

r. r00,501
t) q)5 'tq6

DJ?& t5'

4,430,859

r,0t 8,83,t

15,739,788

2 r,189,,{81

38,595,039

6,270,064
(640,',l87)

$ 44.221,316

31,2',79.639

7,208.218
(529,176)

37,958,711

At June 30, 2012, the Municipalify's current assets, amounting to $19,011,904, are mainly
composed of cash and cash equivalents ($15,489,752), accounts receivable ($3,491,410), net of
reserve for doubtful accounts and other receivable ($30,742).

The restricted cash rcpr€sents resources legally designated for: (l) the paymeot of debl service,
(2) the acquisition, construction and improvement ofmajor capital assets, and (l) the operations

offederally and state funded grant programs. Restricted cash also consists ofunspent proceeds of
bonds issued for acquisition, construction and improvement of major capital assets. Restricted
property taxes receivable represent resources set aside to redeem the bonds ofthe Municipality in

minimum annual or biannual principal and interest payments.

The Municipality's non-cun€nt assets, amounting to $44,390,571 at June 30, 2012, are composed
of capital assets, with a cost basis of $62,218,201, which are rcported net of accumulated

10



MUNICIPALITY oF AIBONITO
coMMoNWEALTH oF PUERTO Itco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June J0. 2012

depreciation and amortiztion of $18,326,493 and other non-current assets, amounting to

$478.863.

At June 30, 2012, the Municipal;ty's cunent liabilities amounting to $6,252,763 are mainly

composed of accounts payable and accrued liabitities ($2,801,319), unearned revenues

($2,350,923), and the portions due within one year ($1,100,501) ofbonds and notes payable and

compensated absences. Uneamed revenues principally consist of ttneamed revenues associated

with municipal license taxes and intergovemmental grants and contributions related to state and

federally funded grant programs.

The Municipality's non-current liabilities, amounting to $12,925,396 at Jun€ 30, 2012, are mainly

composed ofponions due after one year of bonds and noted payable ($12,147,850) compensated

absences ($758,790) and other liabilities ($18,756).

As noted earlier, net ttssets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Municipality's

financial position. The assets ofthe Municipal;ty exceeded liabilities by $44,224,316 at June 30,

2012. The most significant portion of net assets ($38,595,039) reflects the Municipality's
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, fumiture, fixtures,

infrastructure, etc.), net ofall related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire, construct or

improve thos€ assets. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to its

citizens; consequent,y, these ass€ts are not available for future spending. Although the

Municipality's investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the

resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since capital assets cannot

be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another significant portion ofnet assets ($6,270,064) at June 30, 2012, rcprcsents resources that

are restricted fo. debt service payments, capital projects and other purposes.

The remaining component of total net assets consists of umestricted net liabilities amounting to

$640,787 at June 30, 2012. These unrestricted net liabilities are the consequence of previous

budgets that did not provide sufTicient funding for incurred long_term obligations, such as bonds

and notes payable, compensated absences, ciaims andjudgments, certain obligations under capital

leases, etc- Historically, a significant portion ofsuch obligations has been budg€ted on a pay-as-

you-go basis.

The total net assets ofthe Municipality increased by $6,265,605 during the fiscal year ended June

30,2012.

This Space Has Been Intentionall! Left Blank
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

The following is a condensed presentation ofthe Municipality's results of operations as reported

in the GWFS:

Cond€nsed Statement of Activities
Govemmertal and Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Y€ars Ended June 30.2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Prcgmm revenues:
Program-specifi c operating gmnts and contributions

Program-specifi c capital grants and contributions

Charges for services

Total progmm revenues

General revenues:

Prcprty taxes

Municipal license ta-tes

Construction excise taxes

Sales and use tax

Unrcstricted grants and contributions

Interest on deposits

Other general revenues (various sources)

Total general revenues
Total revenues

Prcgmm expenses:

General govemment

U6an and economic dev€lopment

Health and sanitaticn

Public safety

Public housing and welfare

Culture, recreation and education

Interest on long-term obligations

Total expenses

Net increase in net assets

Net assets, at beginning offiscal year

Prior-period adjustments

Net assets, at beginning of flscal year, as restated

Net ass€ts, at end offiscal year

$ 2,364,753

4,043,806

68,321

3,574,',l34

1,530,840
'76.852

6,476,880

2,652,199

1,798,287

589,770

646,829

4,205,013

772,741

1,368,618

12,033,157

-l85mJ-37
5,539, t63

2,558,482

587,125

106,575

I,699,150
r,350,047

404,190

5,182,426

2.133,968

1,79i,839

332,059

616,652

3,812,470

337,699

1,020,864

t2,244,',732

10,64',7,551

15,829,977

3,',769,822

5,411,768

359,544

102,538

t,292,067
1,184,632

492,074

12,612,445

3',7,958,711-

3,2t 7,532

38,077,258

(i,136,079)

37,958,',711 34,74t,179

44.221,316 37,958,7 r r

As previously mentioned, the Municipality's net assets increased by $6,265,605 during the

current fiscal year. Approximately l1% ofthe Municipality's total revenues for the current fiscal

year came from property, municipal ticense, construction excise ta,\es and sales and use taxes

iSs,osl,oss). G;an6, contributions and charges for services (program revenues), amounting to

$10,681,893, provided 58% of the total revenues for the cun€nt fiscal year. Miscellaneous

revenues anrl interest on deposits provided the remaining 11% of total revenues'
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

The Municipality's expenses cover a wide range of services- The largest expenses of the
Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012 were related toi (1) general administrating
and operating costs ($5,539,163) which were classified as "general govemment", (2) urban and
economic development ($2,558,182), (3) public housing and welfare (91,699,150), (4) culture,
recrcation and education ($1,350,047), (5) health and sanitation ($587,125), (6) inrerest on long-
term obligations ($40a,190), and (?) and public safety ($106,575). These expenses include
depreciation and amortization of capital assets in the amounts of $1,987,793 for the fiscal year
ended June 30- 2012.

FINANCIAL ANAIYSIS OF GOVtrRNMENTAL FIINDS

Anallsit oJ Financial Position of Goverumental Furrds

As discussed earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Municipality's
govemmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows! outflows, aod balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure ofthe Municipality's net resouces available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal
year.

At June 30, 2012, the total assets of govemmental funds amounted to $22,642,625 which
consisted principally of: (l) cash and cash equivalents of $15,379,1 I I (2) accounts receivable,
$3,463,112, net of reserve for doubful accounts, and (3) ioter-fund receivables of $3,775,303.
Such assets are restricted for debt servic€, capital Fojects, encumbrances and other specific
purposes.

At June 30, 2012, the total liabilities of govemmental funds amounted to $9,321,912, which
consisted principally of: (1) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of$1,391,951, (2) deierred
revenues of $2,i50,923, (3) inter-fund payables ($3,775,303) and (4) matured bonds due and
payable of$415,000.

This Space Has Been Intentionolly Left Blank
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COMMONWEALTH OT PUERTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The fund balances of govemmental funds decreased by $3,049,325 during the fiscal year ended

June 30.2012.

Condensed Balance Sheet _ Govemmental Funds

June 30, 2012 ard 20ll
2012

Assels:

Total assets - major govemmental funds

Total assets - other govemmental funds

Combined total assets

Liobilities:
Total liabilities - major governmental funds

Total liabilities - other govemmental funds

Combined total liabilities

Furrd baldnces:

Assigned or restricted - major governmenal funds

Assigned or restricted - other governmental funds

Unassigned - all governmental funds

Combined total fund balances

Total lidbilities a dJund bala ces

ztl1

19,689,519

2,953,106

2 r,383,951

3,116,681

22,612,625 $ 24,500,632

6,938,96s

1,191,629
8,289,328

1,032.584

9,32t,912 8,130,59,r

11,393,354

1,920,522

6,837

14,358,020

1,925,0s2

86,966

13,320,713 16,370,038

22,642.625 24,500,632

Major GoYernm€ntal Funds

General fund (GF) - The GF is the principal operating fund ofthe Municipality The GF's total

i 

-u.orm"a 

to S0,s22.228 at Juie 30,201i- such assets consist principally of: (1) cash and

cash equivalents ($3,525,731), (2) property tax, municipal license tax, construction excise tax'

sales and use tax, and intergovemmental grants and contributions receivabte ($2,349,94'1), and (3)

short-term and long-term amounts due from other funds ($1,046,553).

Th€ GF's total liabilities amounted to $6,240,353 at June 30, 2012 Such liabilities are composed

mainly of: (l) intergovernmental payables ($1,388,735), (2) deferred revenues ($1,392,075)' (3)

accounts payable ani accrued liabilities (731,505), and short-term and long term amounts due to

other funds ($2,728,038).

At the end of the cunent fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the GF amounted to $6,837,

while total fund balance amounted to $681,875.

Capital proiects futrd (CPF) - The CPF'S total assets amounted to $7'806,503 at June 30, 2012,

*h,"t 
""rrlat 

."rrl)-t'"".t and cash equivalents ($7,077,943), intergovemmental grants and

contributions receiv;ble ($705,606) and acirued interest on deposits ($22,954). The CPF'S total

liabilities amounted to $?81.234 at June 30, 2012, which are mainly composed of accounts

1.1



MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
COMMON\ EALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

payable and accrued liabilities ($32,669) and intergovemmental pa)'ables ($748,565). At the end

ofthe current fiscal year, CPSF's total restricted fund balance reached $7,025,269.

Debt service fund (DSF) - The DSF'S total assets amounted to $2,778,281 at June 30,2012,
which consist mainly of restricted cash in fiscal agent ($2.628,i53), restricted property taxes

receivable, net of reserve for doubtful accounts ($73,192). intergovemmental gmnts and

contributions receivable and others ($76,5i8). The DSF's total liabilities amounted to $662,454
at June 10, 2012, which are mainly composed of: ( l) matured bonds and interests due and payable

($415,000), (2) accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($247,414). (3) and due to other funds
(s4o).

Lesislativ€ ioint resolution! fund (LIR[) - The LJRF'S total restricted assets amounted to

$1,956,?97 at June 30, 2012, \r'hich consist ofcash in a commercial bank ($1,128,379), due from
other funds ($826,803) and accrued interest on deposits ($1,615). At the end ofthe current fiscal
year, LJRF'S total fund balance is $1,576,434.

Other eovernmertrl funds (OGF) - The OGF'S total assets amounted to $2,953,106 at June 30,

2012, which consist mainly of restricted cash and cash equivalents ($79i,959), due from other
funds ($1,901,4,+5), aild accrued interest receivable ($70). Tte OGF's total liabililies amounted

to $1,032,584 at June 30,2012, which are mainly composed ofdeferred revenues ($733,924) and

short{erm and long-term amounts due to other funds ($298,660).

This Space Has Been Intentionall! Left Blank
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
FiscalYear Ended June 30,2012

Analysb of Opetuling Results of Govemmefitol Funds

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fiscal Years Ended June 30.2012 and 2011

2012 20ll
Revenues:

Total revenues - major governmental funds

I otal revenues - other goremmenLal [unds

Combined total revenues

ExWnditures:
Total expenditures - major govemmental funds

Total expenditures - other govemmental funds

Combined total expenditures

Defrciency of rewnues under expenditures

Otherfi ancing sources, net:

Proceeds from issuance ofbonds and notes

Other financing sources, net _ other governmental funds

Other financing uses, net - major govemmental funds

Combined other financing sources (uses), net

Etcess (deficiency) ofre\)enues ond other

frnancing sources over (under) erpenditures

a d otherf ancing uses

Fund balance , at beginning offscal year

Pr i or - pe r i od adi u s t m e nt s

Fund balance, at beginning ofliscal year (restated)

Funil balance, at end ofiiscal Year

17,133,410

816-238

t 7 ,949,648

20,345,002

820,081

21,165,083

(3,215,43s)

166,110

87

(87)

166,110

14,739,238

539,092

15,278,330

12,141,653

13,347,041

931,289

4,851,379

4,851,379

(3,049,325)

16,i70,038

6,782,668

12,924,828

(3,336,072I

16,370,038 9,588,749

11,320,713 t6.3'11,411
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Maior Covemmental funds

GgleI4LlEg! - The total fund balance of the GF decreased by $66,209 during current fiscal year'

Approximately 46% ($5,149,38?) ofthe GF's total revenues for the current fiscal year came from

p.ip".ty, .rni"ipuf'f;"ense, construction excise taxes and sales and use taxes' while 38o%

i$+,u o 
j,0 

t i) ..tutt"a ftom intergovemmental $ants and contributions'

The targest expenses ofthe GF for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were rclated toi (1) general

aa.iniit utinj ara op"oting costs ($4,963,898), (2) construction, rehabilitation and presewation

of new or eixisting- housing, ($2,993,280), which were classified as "urban and economic

a"u"topr"nt, (3) 
-culture, 

lecreation and education ($1,330,067), and (4) capital outlay

($1,328,009).

Crpital oroiects funds (CPF) - The total fund balance of the CPF decreased by $1,800'194

lrlin-g.*""t 1,.*l y"".-CPF's total revenues for the current fiscal year came from

interg"ovemmental granis and contributions amounting to $4,043,806 and accrued interest on

depolis amounting"to $309,243 CPF's total exp€nditures for the current fiscal year were mainly

related to capital iuttays, ($5,481,800), general govemment ($167,289) and public housing and

welfare ($360,672).

Debt service fund (DSFI The total fund balance ofthe DSF increased by $316,649 during

"r"""t 
f,.""1 y"".lQp."ximately $537,698 of DSF's total revenues for the current fiscal year

came from reitricted pioperty taxes. DSF's total expenditures for the current fiscal year came

from principal and interests on bonds payable ($984,770).

Lesislative ioint resolutions fund rIJRF) The total fund balance of the LJRF decreased by

SffS5,S25 d*i"g "r."rt fiscal year. LJRF'S total revenues for the current fiscal year carne

p.in"ipully f,o* 
-.tot" 

legislative assignments and contributions amounting to $232,778 and

int".".t on d"po.its amounting $30,002. LJRF'S total expenditures for the current fiscal year

came from capital outlay ($1,758,605).

Other sovernmental funals (OGF) - Substantially all of OGF'S revenues for the current fiscal

)"* 6;f.", ;t".g.r"*.""t"1 g*nts and contributions of $812.468 and interest on deposits
"oii:,ZZO. fotut .*pinditures were-mainly related to public housing and welfare ($485,'+64) and

general administration ($284,617).

FINAT{CIAL ANALYSIS OF BUSINESST}?E ACTTI'ITIES

Anallsis of Financiat Positio,, of Ptop etary Fund

At June 30, 2012, the total assets of proprietary fund amounted to $2,341'881, wiich consisted

piincipatly ot (lj restricted cash in commercial banks ($110,641), (2) capital assets net of
lccumulaied depreciation ($1,742,413), and other assets ($478,863)' At June 30' 2012' the total

liabilities of th; proprietary fund amounted to $819,412, which consisted principally of: (l)
mortgage notes payable of$i80,001, and (2) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of$20'653

fte ioit r"sri"t"a net assets of proprietary fund amounted to $1,522,469 at June 30,2012' of
wh;ch $962,410 are invested in capital assets, and $560,059 are reserved for progmm activities'
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Management's Discussion and Anal)sis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2012

The following table presents a summary ofthe financial position ofthe proprietary fund (PF) at

June 30,2012:

Assels:

Total current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Total cunent liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt

Restricted for federal funded program

Total restricted net assets

Uirestricteal net assels

Total net assets

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADNIL\ISTRdTION

120,605
1))1 )76

2,341,881

108,235

711,177

819.412

962,410

459.4'70

1,,121,880

100,589

t,522,469

a)

b)

Capital Assets

The Municipality has invested $57,198,069 in capital assets used in governmental activities,

which have an accumulated depreciation and amortization of $15,028,'774 at lrne 30,2012.

The net capital assets increased during the current fiscal year due to the current fiscal year's

capitat additions ($6,630,621), which were partially offset by the depreciation and

amortization expense.

Debt Administration

The Municipality finances a significant portion ofits construction activities through bond and

note issuances, and through state and federal grants. The proceeds from bond issuances

designated for constnrction activities are committed in its entirety for such purposes and

cannot be us€d for any other purposes,

At June 30, 2012, the Municipality's total bonded debt amounted to $11,779,910 consisting

ofbonds payable. Such debt is backed by the full faith and credit ofthe Municipality The

Municipality has also certain outstanding notes Payable. Such notes payable also decreased

18
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aluring the current fiscal year mainly due to the principal payments made du ng ihe same

period.

RNQI]EST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Municipalityt-finances for

all of the Muni;ipality's ciiizens, taxpayen, customers. investors and creditors This financial

report seeks to 
'demonstrate the Municipality's accountability for the money it receives

Qiestions conceming any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional

i;fonnation should be addressed to: Municipality of Aibonito, Department ofFinance'
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CoMMoNVIALTH oF PUf, RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITYOF AIBONITO

Statement ofNet Assets
June 30,2012

A!sets

Cash in co rrirercial bank
Accounts jeceivable. net ofallowance for

d o ubtful accounts :

Property t es
Munic;pal license t €s
Crnstruction excise t €s
Sales and use ta)€s

IntergovemnEntal gmnts and contributions
Restricred assets:

Cash in corinnercial banks

Cash in fiscalagent
Accounts receivable:

Property t €s receivable, net ofallowance
for doubttul accounts

Accrued interests on deposits
lntergovemrEntal grants and contributions
Other receivables

Other current assets
Total curent assets

Non{urrent ,ssets:
Capital assets:

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $ 15,028,7 74 and $ 3,29'7 ,719 fot
gor emnEnraland bushessr) pe activities.

Non{epreciable capital assets

Total non-current assets
Totalassets

$ 3,525,731 $ 3,525,',731

acti!ities Total

1,037,134

4309
24.473

51,641

1232,147

1,888,933

9,96,1.441

'83q2
25,(B

1.039,776

23.9'17

l8"8rr 2r,

1l0,6,11

:

6;765

120.@5

t,o3'7,334

d309
2+473
51,641

1,232,14 t

t,999,574
9,964,44',7

25,4'
1,O39,776

3,199

30.742

19,011,904

23.9r)5.',732

18,263.563

42,169,295

_!______q!9ai14

1,616,263

126,150
478,863

2."21,276
2,341,881

18,189,713

478,863

44,390,511

-s____63,402$s

The acconpanyihg notes to the basicrtndncial statehents are ak iktegral paft ofthis statenent
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CoMMoNwf, ALTH oT PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBONITO

Statement of Net Assets (concluded)
June 30,2012

Lirtilities and n€t assets

Current liabi I ities (due $ithin one year):

Accounts payable:

Trade payables

Intergovemmental payables

Accrued interests on bonds and notes payable

Uneamed revenues
C!rrent ponion of long-term obligations :

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Cornpensated absences
Total curent liabilities

Non-{:urrent I isli liaies, excl uding current po.tioo
(due in more rhan on€ year) :

Bonds payable

Compensated absences
Other liabilities

Total nor-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets Ciattlities):
Invested in cap;tal assets, net ofrelated debt

Capitalprojects
otherpurposes

Total restricted

Totalnet assets

Business-type

s 1,144,537

1,383,735

415,0m
16,088

58r,831

6.114,524

m,653_

s7,5;

$ 1,165,190

1,388,735

217,411

2,35U923

108,235

415,000

103,670

58l,8lr
6,251763

11,364,9t0

90,519

758,790

692,121

18.756

11,364,910
'782,910

'758.1

l&756
12,925.396

r 9,178,I59

38,595.019

625,14
3.529,133

' 6210'Ml
(640.787)

_!___ 441;16

12,2t4,219

18,158,747

37.632,629

2,115,429

19',7,O25

3,49',7,740

5,810,594
('74t.316)

$ 42,701,847

al9,4t2

2,41O

711.177

424,07'7

31,391

459t70
100,589

1,5"2,469

The acconpaaying holes to the basiclinancial statements are ak ihtegrdl Pafl ofthis statehekt
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
Statement of Activities

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Proar.n Proarrn
sp€cific ap.cifi c

Charee3 op€rlting caPit,l
for grrnrs.nd gtants,nd

senices conlribution3 confib!tionsFuncrions/p.ogrrms

Got.d .ha dci'ni.s

Urhan and e@nonic developme.r

Public hoEingod ElIae
Cdrre, rec.eation dd edcalion

Inrdesrs on longrem obllcario.s
-roral governmenral activnies

awa8etJpe dc,hif6:
Public hoBinsand Elfdq

including inter.$ on lomS-lem

oUiAarions of$55,344
Total buines tYP. activncs

at2.468
232,174-

762.123

4.013,S0;

t (4,660.339)

t,7l8,l02
(537.125)

(r06,5?t)
(166,729)

t (4,650,339)

1,713,t02
(537,125)

(106,57s)

l.)66,129)

(10,9.r9) (10.9,19)

(10,9,19) S (10,919)

C€nqal.ev.nEs:
Td6:

ProPen, tues
Muiciptl li"ns tdes
Con*N1ion excis tds
Sales ande rd.s

Tolol ld revmEs

Intqgpver.metrlal ga.rs ed @atribuions

not rest.icl.d to +ecific Progrds
lnrereq on thDosns

Mi*.lls@E
Total SFneral i.venEs

Net incee h nel ets
Net s*rs at b'Cinnmg of fi$al Ye&
P or Period adjrslmenr
Net assets ar begDni'g o I fi$al ver 6 r€nared

Net ts(s at end of fisnl Yer

The a..onpanyi,a notes ta th. basic fiharci,t staEnents are an ntesrut Pad oJthis latdent

$ 2.652,199

1,512.0?3

l sl2 073 r/.er3./rr
x 4170t 347 $ 1.522.464 144,2.,rro
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CoMNIoNWEALTH oT PUf,RTo RIco
MI,NICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Balance Sheet -Govemmental Funds
Fisca, Year Ended June 30, 2012

ILior emrnmental fund

O.h€r Tobl
aoErnn.nrrl gMrnmentll

fund fun*,\s.b

C6h in comrcial btul6
Accounrs receivabl€, net of al]ow.nce

fordoubttula.couns:

Mun icipal hcense i*s
Co.sttucnon ercice taEs
Sales and use.aps

InrerEovemrental gtua and onhtutbns
Doe nom 0ther aovedmntal tunds

C6h incomrcialbmk

Accrued inleEst on deposns

Dne tom orh€r govemrnla] tunds

lntergovemmntal ga.ts md
co.hl'utions eceivable

Propedy raEs rcceivobl€, net ofeserue
tordoubltulaccounts

Uatiliii.s
Accouns payable dd acctu.d Lnbilties
Intergovemm.rd payables

Liabinies Elated 10 Blricr€d ssels:
Ac@unts payable and accrued liabiLries

Matured bonds due tnd payable

$ 3,525,711 - $ 3,525,731

1,017,33,1

- 43@
, 24473
- 5t,64t
- 1,232,147

1.0,16,551

46,916 t,838,933

326,983 9, 1147
70 25,t9)

1.9OI,.r45 2.124,150

1,124379

1.615

2,625,n;
,,:

22492t

235

t.039.11;

13,392 13.392

J 6,922,!aa 7,3o6,jor 1.956,79? 1773,23! 4:J!!

I,133,715

2,723,013

330.361

:

212a,038

D\gU 133,924
4r50lo 415.000

6.240.353 1312!1 330,161 662,454 224.924 1,A32,5U 9.321.912

aund bermce (dnci6)

Total ftrd balances (de6cils)
Total liabidies and tundbalances (deficits)

675.033

5,337

675,033

6.337
'1,02i2@ 1.116,434 2,ri,329 7U l,92il?? 14!l!!ll

631,375 7,m5.2@ 1.576,41.1 1115,429 734 1,920,i22 ll,l20.7ll
( ^",,'.1 .s.^. ,..".", , ,q,q, .,.

fhe acconpaiyins notet to,hc basiclnanciat salemnts are rntesra! part.JthB rtatetuht
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COMMONI EALTH OFPUf,RTO ITCO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batances (Deficits) - Govemmental Fuods

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012

Mxis sernmclt l lund

jdnt D.t SFcirl Olh..
r.sduiions commu .i.s SNrnn.nat AMrtrn.nr.l

ENrlund lutrd

Municipallierse raEs
Constuction w;s. raEs

Total rax evenu.s
In.ergov.mmnbl gEnts od conrnt'utions

C.neBlsoY.nrent
Urban ,nd .conotric d.veb9,rmi
Herrh ,nd smirarion

Publichousing d wlfaE
auhnE. Eccalion a.d education

Tor.lependnuEs
Revenu* oter (under) t9cndilnB

olh.r fi n.rcins 3d.c.5 (ud):
Poceeds ftom issurc. ofbonds a.d not6
Tanses in fom orher sot.mmnrsl tunds

TonsG6{u. to othdBovmEntal tunds

Toh! orhcr 6na.ciis sources (uses), net
Net inc@se (d€c6e) in

tund balances (defEns)

Fu.d b.lm.. (&6cit), tt heaintritrg oflLc.l y.,r
PriE-F.iod.qustuntt
Fudhl c. (d.fi.it) .t b.Iitrnine offiscal
r..r.B r..ni.d

F;d holrnce (&li.io rt .nd or fi3crl rrr U

$ 2.1t4,501 - 511693 - s 2,652.199

t,195257 ' l79A,r7
5s9 70 5a9T1o

- 6'!6 329

762,123

3,325..161 3972259 l.?99,13o

- a9 149

l3,o@ 53l,2oo - 60l20il

2570 401.570 _ 'l04 t9o

l j23.@e \.,At &00 L53 bO5 50000 3613.414

,lt32lr rrbs76l, '1.405a25' ll?.2<r 1.e tr.eJ) ():r),{'-,

l66,ll0

.i6.,i. ,A. ir8$, r13n rltd.0t6l

-=i;1-, 
rr1, {oru, r '66.110

rb2oa,,'3oo'a4, ."40i32si r""i:_-------_!-r]-E!---r:iE:I',

n4 \c2427A 16170,013
?,13.03.1

rheaccohpo,yi,aNt.s,o the basicl,a"cial iaktunb ah7a"-Qle*t o*r "lrt;" aa"-*t
,0,v

d\
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COMIUONWEALTH OT PU!]RTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY Of ATBONITO

Reconciliation ofthe Balance Sheet- Govemmental Funds to Statement ofNetAssets
June 30,2012

Business -
Governmental tYPe

The amounts of govemmental activities reported in the statement of net

- ass€ts and the balarlce sheet gov€mmental funds, are different for tle
following reasons:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not considered

available financial resources at fiscal y€ar-end, therefore, are not

- reported in the govemmental funds. This is the carrying amount

ofcapital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation ard

Debt issued by the Municipality has associated cost (debt issuance

- costs) that are paid fiom current available financial resourses in

the govemmental funds. However, these costs are deferred in the

statement of net assets and reported net of accumulated

The following liabilities are not due (mature) in the current fiscal

year, therefore, are not r€ported in the gov€mmental funds at

- June 30,2012:

Bonds PaYable
- Notes payable

Compensated absences

Net assets - gove[unental activities, as reported in the statement ofnet

_ assets

activities activities Total

Totalfund balances reporteal in the balance sheet govemmentalfunds $ 13,320,?13 $ l'522'469 s 14843 182

Add (Deduct):

42,169,295

)1q77

(r 1,364,9r0)
(106,607)

- 42,169,295

23,9',7 7

- (11,364,910)

- (106,607)

r l j40-b2lr - (l,lao 62l)

$ 42 701-847 1.522.'t6c $ 44-:24.116

The acconparying notes to the baric lnanciol statenents arc dk integral pa ofthis stalenent
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COTtMoNwEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBoNITO

Reconciliation ofthe Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes ;n Fund Balances -
Covemmental Funds to Statement ofActivit;es

JuDe 30- 2012

BusiDess -
CffrnDentd ttle

actitities acrinties
The amomts of govemmental activities reported in the statement of
activities and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes ;n fund
balances (deficits) - governmental funds, are different for the folowiDg

Total net decrease in fund balances reported in the statement ofrevenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances gove.nmental fmds

Add (Deduct):
Govemmental fmds report capital outlays ($2230913) as

expenditues. However in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is alocated over their estimaled useful lives as

depreciation and amortization expense.

Covenrmental flmds report the proceeds from the issuance of bonds

($4,8s0,00o) as other financhl sources, however, such amounts are
reponed as an ;ncrease in bonds payable in the statement of net

Covemmental fuds do not report deprec;ndon expense ($1,441,047)

as expenditure, however, such amounts are reponed in the statement

coJemmental funds defer the revenues from associated sources
eamed. but unavailable. However, these revenues streams are

recorded in the statement of activities when eamed This is the net

change in the defened revenues of unavailable soNesi
Construction excise laxes

Repayment of principal of long-tem obligations is refDrted as

expenditure in the govemmental tundsi howeve., the repaymerl
reduces long-term fiabilities in the statement of net assets.

The following expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use oi current available lnancial resourses, therefore are

nor reported in the governmental fmds:
Ner change in deferred charges (debt issue cosrs )
Net change in accrued compeNated absences

$ (3.049325)

8518,411

(9,609) $ (3,0s8,914)

(166,110)

8,618,4t4

(166,1r0)

lt ,987 .',793)

(24,9,18)

3,008,7r4

( r.987.79r)

(2.1,9.18)

3.008,71.1

2397 7

(147Jts)
23,9T1

(t4'7,7t5)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets, as reported in statement of
activities $ 627s214 (9,609) $ 6:65,6os

The acconpahyinE notes to the basicfna,cial starerehE arc an ikteElal pa ofthissldtereht.
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COMMoNWIALTH of PUI]RTo RICo
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBoNITo

Statement ofNet Assets
Proprietary Fund

Juoe 30,2012

Business-Type Activities -
Eoterprise Fund

Las Flores Apartments
FmHA,nd Hud Project
No. 63-00$660-43-3572Restrided Assets

Cash in commercial banks

Tenants accoimts receivable

Total curr€nt assets

Depreciable capital assets

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciable capital assets, Det of accumulated depreciation
Non-depreciable capital assets

Total capital ass€ts

Total non-cunent assets
Total assets

Liabilities and fund net ,ssets

CurreDt liabilities (due withiD one year):
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities
Currenl portion ofmo.tgage notes payable

Total curent liabilities

Non-current liabilities, excluding currcnt portion
Tenants' security deposits
Nlofgage notes payable due in more than one year

Total non-cunent liabilities
Totalliahilitis

Invesred in capitalassets, netofrelared debt
Restdcted for:

Capital projets
Other purposes

Total .estricted

Tolal nel assets

$ 110,641

3,199
6.165

120.605

4,913,982
(3.297.719\

1,616,263

t,742,4t3

2.22t.L76
s 2.341.881

$ 20,651
&7,582

108,215

18,756

692,421
7|,117
8 r 9,4 r2

962.110

128,077

I1,393
459,470
r00.589

_!______);2.46e

The accodparying notes to the basic Jimncial statehents ore an integral part of thk sbtene t
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CoiI'IMoN\ EALTH oF PUERTof{co
MUNICIPALITYoT AIBoNTTo

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-T!pe Activities -

Enterprhe rund

Operrting rcvenues;
Charges lor services - rental income from tenanis
Intergovemmental graflts and contributions

tenants assistance palrnents fiom u.s.
Department ofHousing and Urban Development

Total operating revenues

Operrting expenses:

General and administrative
Utilities
Maint€nance

Interest on mortgage notes payable

Depr ec iation of capital assets

Total operating expenses

Operatins income (loss)

Net assets at beginning ol riscal year
Net assets at end offiscal year

Las Flores Aprrtments
I.mHA and HUD Pmject
No. 63-005-660-43-3572

$ 1,965

55',7.384

560,689

177,493

8,000

I0J,8l7
3',7,891

54,581

186,516

570,294
(9,609)

1,532,078

_!----_J-,s22,462_

The acco parying ates to the basicrtnancial state ents arc an integal pafi o/this state ent
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CoMMoN\ EALTH oFPUf,RTO FJCO

MUNICTPALITY oF AIBONITO
Statement ofClrsh Flows

Proprietary Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netdecrease in nei assets

Depreciation expens€

Increase in accounts receivable - tenants, net

lncrease in accounts receivable - HUD

Dedease in prepaid insurance

Decrease in miscellaneus PrePaid
lncrease in deposit held bY trust

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expens€s

Decrease in deposit tenants security

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash ftows from investing activities:
Decrease in reserve for replacement

Decrease in escrow accomt
Decrease in building improvements

Decrease in building equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in mongage Payable

Net cash used by financing activities

Net decrease in cash

Cash in commercial banks at begirning ofyear

Cash in commercial banks at end ofy€ar

Business-Type Activiries -
Enterpris3 Fund

Las Flores Apartmeots
FmHA and HUD Project
No. 63-00!660-43-3572

5 (9,609)

I86,516
193

3,121
(3,8s7)
(2,140)

s29
(3.114)

(s29)

l7t.5l0

(27,152\
r)n 56)\

(4,494)
r 6401

(52.848)

(85.205)

(85'205)

33.451

'7 7,184

s 110,641

The accodpanying notes to the basicfinanciol statenents are an inteval pd ofthis statenent
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2012

l. Summary ofSignificant Accounting Polici€s

The Municipality of Aibonito, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipaliry)' ;s a local

..n;"ip"i g*"it.*t consti;uted in 1824 in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico The

nauni";paifr, f,". ntfl f"gislative, fiscal and all other govemmentat poyers and responsibilities

"*n.esslv 
aisiened bt lar No. 8l ol August 10. lQsl as amended kno$n as Autonomous

itkiiiaiii"i en .i ,ne eonnonveahhll Puerto Rico t Act No 8lr' the Municipaliry is

one oiseventy-eighi municipat govemmenls legally separated lrom the state govemment of

the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico (the Commonwealth).

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides for the separation of powers of the

executive, legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities'

However, thI Municipality's govemmental system consists of executive and legislative

branches only. A Uayor,_ele;d every four years b) the citizens, exercises the executive

power of the Municipality. The legislalive po$er of the Municipaliry is exercised by the

iMunicipat Legislature, *ho." .".bet are also elected every four years The judiciary

po*". i. 
"*".ii..d 

by the General Justice Court System of the Commonweatth, which has

jurisdiction over the Municipality.

The Municipality assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to its

citizens relaied to public housing, welfare, public safety, health, sanitation, education, culture'

recreation, urban development, economic development, and many other fiscal geneial and

administrative services.

^l Financial Reportirtg Model

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position of the

goremmental act;ities, the business-type activities, €ach major gov-emmental and

iroprietary funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Municipality at

iun" :0, iotz, in conformity ;ith Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the

United States of America (GAAP), as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting

Standards Board (CASB). ln addition, the accompanying basic financial statements

present the changes in the financial position (results of operations) ofthe gov€mmental

activities, the buiiness-type activities, each major govemmental and proprietary funds'

and the aggr€gate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012' in

conformi!'with GAAP. Furthermore, the basic financial statements referred to above

present the cash flows ofthe business-type activities (proprietary fund) for the fiscal year

ended June 30,2012 in conformity with GAAP.

According to the financial reporting model established by GASB StatementNo' 34, Bdsr'c

Financiai Statements - and Management's Discussion nnd Anallsis -for Stote and Local

Governments (GASB No. 34), the required basic financial statement presentation

applicable to the Municipality is composed of the following elements: (l) govemment-

wide financial statemenas (GWFS), i2) govemmental and proprietary fund financial

statements (FIS), (3) notes to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary

information (RSI).
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MLINICIPALITY OF AIBONITO
CoMMoNwf,ALTH of PUERTo RIco

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30.2012

rqsl consists oi (l) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a
budgetary comparison schedule - general fund. RSI is unaudired supplementary
information required by GAAP presented along with, but sepamte from, the
Municipality's basic fi nancial statements.

MD&1 is a nanative teport that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements
and provides an analltical overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, based on the Municipaliry's knowledge of the
transactiols, events and conditions reflected in the basic financial statements. The
MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies that control rhe Municipality's
operations,

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements referred to above, the
accompanying basic financial statements are accompanied by additional supplementary
information consisting of a budgetary comparison schedule - debt service fund and the
notes to the budgetar) comparison schedule debt service fund, which have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the accompanying basic
financial statements as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

On March 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 55, f,ie
Hierarchy oJ Generalb) Accepted Accounting Pinciples for State a d Local Gdemments
(GASB 55), and GASB Statement No.56, Codification of Accowting and Fin1ncial
Reporting Guiddnce Contained in the AICPA Stdtements on Auditing Standards (GASB
56).

GASB 55 incorporated the hierarchy ofgenerally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
for state and local govemments into the Govemmental Accounting Slandards Board's
(GASB) authoritative literature. The requirements in this Statement codify all GAAP for
state and localgovemments so that they derive from a single source.

CASB 56 incorporated into the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB)
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' Stat€ments on Auditing
Standards. This Statement addressed three issues not included in the authoritati!€
literature that establishes accounting principJes-related pany transactions, go;ng
concem considerations. and subsequent events.

The adoption of GASB 55 and GASB 56 did not have retroactive cumulative effects
affecting the accompanying financial statements as ofJuly 1, 201 l, and have not affected
the financial positions and the results of operations reported as ofand for the fiscal year
ended June 30,2012. Accordingly, the accompanying GFFS have not reported any
retroactive restatements or reclassifications of fund equ ities as of July 1 , 20 I I .

Finahcial Reponi g Entil)

The accompanying basic financial statements
municipal operational units that arc under the

include all departments, agencies and
legal and administrative control of the
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MUNTcIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
CoMMoN\ EALTH oTPUERTo RICo

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2012

Mayor, and whose financial resources are under the legal custody and conhol of the
Municipality's Director ofFinance, as prcscribed by Act No. 81.

The accompanying basic financial statements include th€ financial statements of Las
Flores Apartments (Fm[A and HUD Project No. 63-005-660-,+3-3572), an operational
unit and a business-type activity (proprietary fund) oflhe Municipality which single audit
report reflect total assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses of$2,14i,881,
$819,412, $1,522,469, $560,689 and $570,298, respectively, as ofand for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. The financial position. results ofoperations and cash flows of Las
Flores Apartments as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are reported in the
accompanying statement of net assets proprietary fltnd, the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net assets - prcprietary fund, and the statement of cash
flows proprietary fund, respectively.

Las Flores Apartments is a housing development project consisting ofone-hundred ( 100)
d\|elling units located in Aibonito. The projecr is owned by the Municipality, but its
opemtions are carried out by a private management agent unrelated to the Municipality.
The housing development project of Las Flores Apartments has been designed to assist
various segments ofthe general public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental
housing. The project operates under financing through the Section 8 Housing Assistance
Prcgram ofthe U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The pueose of
Las Flores Apartments is to provide adequate housing to low-income residents of the
Municipality. Separate aud;ted financial statements of Las Flores Apartments can be
obtained directly from the management agent's offrces at Villa Nevares Professional
Center, Suite 302, San Juan, Pue(o Rico 00927.

On July 1, 2005, the Municipality adopted the p.ovisions of GASB Statement No. J9,
Determining Whether Certai Organizations are Coilponent U its dn Amendment of
GASB Statement No-,/.1(GASB No.39). GASB No.39 states that ce(ain organizations
for which a primary govemment is not financially accountable nevertheless warrant
inclusion as part ofthe financial reporting entity because ofthe nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary governmeot, including their ongoing financial support
ofthe primary govemment and its other component units.

According to GASB No. 39, a legally separate, tax-exempt organization should be
reported as a discretely presented component unit of a reporting entity if all of the
following criteria are met:

The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely
or almost entirely for the direct benefit ofthe primary govemment, its component
units, or its constituents.

The primary govemment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the abiliry
to otherwise access, a majority ofthe €conomic resources rcceived or held by the
separate organization,
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2012

. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the

specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the

ability to oth€rwise access, are significant to that primary govemment.

In addition, GASB No. 39 states that other organizations should be evaluated as potential

component units if they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primar)

govemment. Such types of entities may be presented as either blended or discretely

presented component units, depending upon how they meet the criteria for each specified

in GASB No. 14. The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the

aforementioned criteri4 there are no legally separate entities or organizations that should

be reported as component units of the Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended

June 30,2012.

c') Governmenl-Wide Financial Sldehrenls

The accompanying GWFS are composed of: (l) the statement of net ass€ts and (2) the

statement oi activities. These financial statements report information ofall govemmental

and business-type activities ofthe Municipality as a whole. These statements are aimed

at presenting a broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its financial

position and rcsults of opemtions using methods that are similar to those used by most

private businesses.

The focus of GWFS is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipaliry as a single

economic unit and not on comp]iance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use

of available or currently expendable financial resources (refened to as fiscal

accountability). Operational accountability is the MuniciPality's responsibility to report

to the extent to which it has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using

all resources available for that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality's priicipal

operating objective, which is to provide sen'ices to its citizens.

The accompanying statement ofnet assets provides short-term and long-term information

about the Municipaliry's financial position by presenting all ofthe Municipality's assets

and liabilities, with the difference between these two items reported as "net assets"

(equity) and/or net liabilities (accumulated deficit). This statement assists management in

assessing the level ofservices that can be provided by the Municipality in the future and

its ability to meet its obligations as they become due- In addition, this statement reports

the extent to which the Municipality has invested in capital assets and discloses legal and

contractual restrictions on resources.

Net assets (liabiliti€s) are classjfied in the accompanying statement of net assets within

the following thrc€ categories:

. Iovesteal in capital assets, nel of related debl This net asset category consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the

ouistrndirg balances of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are

attributed io the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets For the

purposes of determining the outstanding debt attributed to capital assets, th€ total

iong-term debt related to the acquisition, constuction or improvement of capital
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assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt proceeds and any related
unamortized debt issuance costs.

Restricted net assets - This net asset category consists ofnet resources restricted by
extemal parties (such as creditors, gmntors, contributors, laws or regulations ofother
govemments, etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that
authorizes the Municipality to assess, lely, charge or otherwise mandate payment of
resources (from external resource providers). Enabling legislation establishes
restrictions if it includes a Iegally enforceable requirement that those rcsources be
used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

On July l, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisions of Statement No. 46, Ne,
Assets Restricted by Enabli g Legislation (GASB No. 46). This Statement requires
that limitations on the use ofnet assets imposed by enabling legislation be reported as

restricted net assets. This Statement clarified that a legally enforceable enabling
legislation restriction is one that a party extemal to the Municipality (such as citizens,
public interest groups, or thejudiciary) can compel the Municipality to honor. This
Stat€ment states that the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation should be
reevaluated if any ofthe resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a
purpose not specified by the enabling legislation or if the Municipality has other
cause for consideration. Although the determination that a particular restriction is not
legally enforceable may cause the Municipality to review the enforceability of other
restrictions, it should not necessarily lead the Municipality to the same conclusion for
all enabling legislation restrictions.

The classification ofrestricted net assets identifies resources that have been received
or eamed by the Municipality with an explicit understanding between the
Municipality and the resource providers that the resources would be used for specific
purposes. Grants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of
conditions. Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific
purposes.

Intemally imposed designations of resources, including earmarking, are not reported
as restricted net assets. These designations consist ofmanagement's plans for the use

of resources, which are subject to change at the discretion of the Municipal
Legislature.

The Municipality has reponed the following types of restricted net assets in the
accompanying statement of net assets:

(1) Debt service - Represent net resources available to cover future debt service
payments of bonds payable.

(2) Capital projects Represent n€t resources available to carry out several capital
project funds and the acquisition ofcapital assets.
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(3) Other purposes - Represent net resources available from certain federal and
state gmnts, which have been set aside to carrv out several programs.

. Unr€strict€d This category consists ofthe excess of liabilities over related assets
(accumulated deficit) that are neither extemally nor legally restricted, neither
invested in capital assets. However, assets reported within unrestricted net liabilities
often are designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be
available for general operations. Assets reported within this category often have
constraints that are imposed by management but can be removed or modified. When
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality's
policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as
they arc needed.

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipalit)'s results of
operations by showing, how the MunicipaliB/'s net assets or liabilities changed during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement
presents the cost of each function/program as well as the extent to which each of the
Municipality's functions, programs or other services either contributes to or draws from
the Municipality's general revenues (such as property ta-\es, municipal license taxes,
construction excise ta\es, etc,).

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a
major service or regulatory responsibilit). The functions/programs reported in the
accompanying basic financial statements are: (l) general govemment, (2) urban and
economic development, (3) public safety, (4) health and sanitation, (5) culture, recreation
and education and (6) public housing and welfare. The govemmental opemtions ol the
Municipality's departments and operational units are classified within the following
functions/programs in the accompanying basic financial statements:

Gen€rel govemment:
Municipal legislature
Mayor's office
Department offinance
Depanment of human resources
Department of municipal secretary
Department of intemal audit
Offi ce of communications
Offi ce of administrative services

Urban and €conomic development:
Department of public works
Department of planning and development

Public safety:
Departrnent ofemergency management - civil defense
Department of municipal police
Department of sanitation
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Health and sanitatiotr:
Depanment of recycling sen ices

Municipal enterprises
Department of health

Culture. recreation and education:
Department of sports and recreation
Department of art, culture and tourism

Public housilg and welfare:
Depanment of citizen affairs

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which program revenues offset
direct expenses ofa given functior/program or segments. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable \!ith a specific function, segment or operational unit. This
statement reports revenues in three broad categories: (l) program revenues, (2) gene.al
revenues and (J) special items.

Program reyenues are generated directly from a program itselfor may come from parties
outside the Municipality's t xpayers or citizens. In rhe statement of activities, program
revenues reduce the costs (expenses) ofthe function/program to arrive at: (l) the net cost
ofthe function/program that must be financed from the Municipality's general revenues
or (2) the net program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's geneml rev€nues.
The accompanying statement of activities separately reports the following categories of
program revenues:

. Charges for ser"sices These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchang€-
like transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly beDefit from the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise
directly affected by the ser1,/ices. These revenues include fees charged for specific
serr'ices, rent, charges for licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among
others.

Program-sp€ci{ic op€rating al|d capital grants and contributiotrs These
revenues consist oftransactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange
transactions with other govemments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the
resources for use in a pal.ticular program. Operating grants and contributions consist
of r€sources that are required to be used to finance the costs of opemting a specific
program or can be used either for operating or capital purposes ofa specific program.
Capital erants and contributions consist of revenues or resources that arc restricted
for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate capital assets associated with
a specific program. Restricted operating and capital grants and contributions are
program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a program and reduce
the net expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported net of
estimated uncollectible amounts.

General rete ues are the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and
gains that do not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal
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license t&xes and construction excise ta\es are reported as general rcvenues. All other
nontix revenues (including unrestricted interest on deposits, grants and contributions not
restricted for specific programs and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the
definition of program revenues are classified as general revenues. Resources that are
dedicated intemally by the Municipality are reported as general rcvenues rather than as

program revenues. All general revenues are reported net of estimated uncollectible
amounts, which are rccorded as reduction ofrevenues rather than as expenses.

Special itens consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events
within the control of management that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in

Extraordinaykms consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other
events that are both unusual in nafure and infrequent in occurrence.

The generul govemmerl functiorl/program reported in the accompanying statement of
activities includes expenses that are, in essence, indirect or costs of other
functions/programs of the Municipality. Even though some of these costs have be€n
charged to certain funds in the FFS as indirect cost allocations peimitted under some
federal programs, the Municipality has reported these indirect costs as direct expenses of
the general govemment function. Accordingly, the Municipality genemlly does not
allocate genemlgovemment (indircct) costs to other functions.

The effec6 of all inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other
financing sources/uses among govemmental funds) have been removed from the
accompanying 5talements ofnet asset' and acti\ itje'.

The Municipality classifies the most significant portion of its activities as govemmental

activities in the accompanying GWFS. These are activities generally financed through
taxes, intergovemmental revenues and other non-exchange revenues that can be used to
support the Municipality's programs or services. These govemmental activities are also
generally reported in the FFS. On the other hand, the operations of [.as Flores Apartments
are repofted as business-type activities in the accompanying GWFS. These activities are

primarily financed from grants and contributions and charges for services. These
business-type activities are also repoted in the FFS-

The Municipaliry has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipalit,
would be holding or managing net assets for specific individuals or other extemal parties

in accordance with trust agreements or other custodial arrangements.

The Municipality has operations and activities that arc financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the costs ofproviding goods or services to
the general public (expenses, including depreciation) is financed primarily through user
charges; and where the goveming body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues eamed, expenses incured, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.
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d\ Fund Fiaancial Slatemefis

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entify consisting ofa self-balancing set of accounts used

to record assets, liabiiities and residual equities, deficits or balances, and changes therein,

which are segregated for the purpose ofcarrying on specific activities or attaining certain

objectives in accordance with GAAP and/or special regulations, rest ctions or

limitations.

The accompanying FFS are composed of: (1) the balance sheet - govemmental funds, (2)

the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmenta,

funds, (3) the $atement of net ass€ts proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues,

expenses and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund, and (5) the stafement ofcash

flows - propr;etary fund.

These financial statements report the financial Position and results operations of the

Municipality's governmental and proprietary funds and fund types by presenting sources,

uses and balances of current and noncurrent financial resources. Some of these financial

statements have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (l) the Municipality's
major govemmental fund and fund types, as defined below, (2) the fiscal accountability

and (3) the individual parts of the Municipality's govemment. Fiscal accountability

represents the Municipality's responsibiiity to justiry that its actions in the current fiscal

year have complied with public decisions conceming the raising and spending of public

moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year).

The accompanying FFS segregate govemmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types

according to their intended purpose and are used in demonstmting compliance with legal,

financial and .ontractual provisions. The minimum number of govemmental funds and

fund types is maintained consistent with legal and self-imposed managerial requirements

established by the Municipality.

On July 1, 2010, the Municipality adopted the provisions of CASB Statement No. 54,

Fund Balance Reportitg and Gorernmental Fund Tlpe Derri rbas (GASB 54), which

modified the interpretations of certain terms within the definition ofthe special revenue

funds and the types of activities the Municipality may choose to report in those funds'

GASB 54 also clarified the capital projects fund type definition for befter alignment with

the needs ofpreparers and users. Definitions ofother govemmental fund types also we.e

also modified for clarity and consistency. Pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASB

5,+, the Municipality reported the following types of govemmental funds in the

accompanying GFFS:

. Ge erul fund - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating tund and a

major govemmental fund, as defined below, used to account for all financial

resourc;s and govemmental activities, except for financial resources required to be

accounted for in another fund. It is presumed that the Municipality's govemmental

activities have been reported in the general fund except for transactions for which one

of the following compelling reasons has required the use of another firnd: (l) legal

requirem€nts, (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial

administmtion requiring the use ofa govemmental fund other than the general fund.
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Dehl service fu d The debt senice fund is a major govemmental fund, as defined

below, used by the Municipatity to account for the accumulation of resources for, and

the payment of, principal and interest for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service

palments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and/or (2)

bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is being
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments

maturing in future years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the financial
act;viry accounted for in the debt service fund was specificaliy related to bonds

payable.

The outstanding balance of general long-term obligations for which debt ser'r'ice

payments do not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as not€s

payable and ob,igations under capital leases) are only accounted for io the

accompanying statement of net assets. The debt service payments of such debts, as

applicable, are gen€rally accounted for as debt service principal and debt service -
interest expenditures in the general fund.

Capital projects furuls - Capital projects funds are maior and non-major
govemmental funds, as defined below, used to account for the financial resources

used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital facilities and

other assets. Significant capital outlays financed from proceeds ofgeneral obligation,
public improvement or special obligation bonds accounted for also in the capital

projects funds.

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital

acquisitions, construction or improvement activities that would distort financial

resources tlend data if not reported sepamtely from the other Municipality's
operating activities. The routine puchases of minor capitalizable assets (such as

fumiture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or improvements)

have been reported in the govemmental fund from which financial resources were

used for th€ payment.

Special revefiue Julds - The special revenue funds are non-major govemmental

funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to account for rcvenues derived

fiom grants, contributions or other revenue sources that are either self-restricted by

the Municipality or legally restricted by outside parties for use in specific purposes

(except for revenues that are eamarked for expenditures in major capital projects

which arc accounted for in th€ capital project funds). The uses and limitations of
each special revenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and state

statutes. However, resources restdcted to expenditure for purposes normally
financed from the geneml fund are reported in the Municipality's general fund
provided that all applicable legal requirements are appropriately satisfied. In this

case! a special revenue fund to account for such kind oftransactions will be used only
iflegally mandated.

Proptietary fund - Proprietary fund is an enterprise fund used to rcport the financial
position, results of operation and cash flows of Las Flores Apartments (FHA and

HUD Project No. 63-005-660-43-35?2), which are activities for which the intent of
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management is to recover, partially through user cha.ges for services (rent) and

mostly through federal $ants, the cost oflow-income housing services to the general

Public.

The activities of Las Flores Apartments have been reported as a proprietary fund as

GAAP permits the use of enterprise firnds to report any activity for which a fee is
charged to extemal users ofgoods or services, regardless ofwhether the govemment
intends to fully recover the cost of the goods or services provided- Thus, it is

common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for services where the
govemment intends to recover only a portion ofits costs through fees or user charges
(GASB No. 34, paragraph 67).

The focus ofthe FFS is on major govemmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types,
which generally represent the Municipalit]'s most important funds. Accordingly, the
Municipality is required to segregate govemmental funds, proprietary funds and fund
types between major and non-major categories within the FFS. Major ind;vidual
governmental and proprietary funds and fund tlpes are reported individually as sepamte

columns in the FFS, while data from all non-major govemmental and proprietary funds
are aggregated into a single column, regardless of fund type.

By definition, the Municipalig's general fund is always considered a major govemmental

fund for financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other govemmental fund is

classified as a major govemmental fund in the FFS if its total assets, liabilities, revenues

or expenditures of that individual govemmental fund are at least 10 percent of the
corresponding element total (assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all
govemmental funds. In addition, the same element that meets the 10 percent criterion
must be at least 5 percent ofthe corresponding element total for all govemmental and

enterprise (proprietary) funds combined. For the purposes ofapplying the aforementioned
major fund criteriq no eliminations of inter-fund balances have been made. Total
revenues for these purposes means all revenues, including operating and non-operating
revenues (net of allowances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing
sources. Total expenditures\expenses for these purposes mean all expenditures\expenses,
including operating and non-operating expenditures\expenses, except for other financing
uses.

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality's major govemmental funds
reported in the accompanying FFS are: (1) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3)
the capital project fund, (4) the legislative joint rcsolutions fund and (5) the special
communities trust fund. In addition, Las Flores Apartments has been reported separately
from govemmental tunds as the only proprietary fund ofthe Municipality.

Tle legislative joint resolutions fund is a major govemmental fund, as defined below,
used by the Municipality to accoirnt for revenues derived from state legislative
assignments and contributions that are legally restricted for a wide range of community
development aclivities directed toward revitalizing neighborhoods, economic
development, and providing improved community faci!ities and services.
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The special communities trust fund is a major govemmental fund, created and used to
account for the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Special Communities Progam's firnds

held in trust.

As required by GASB No. 34, the proprietary tund of the Municipality applies all
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting Principles Board (APB) and the Committee
on Accounting Procedure, issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those

pronouncements do not conflict with or contradict the standards of the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board. However, the Municipality has elected to continue
following more recent FASB guidance, provided it neither conflicts nor contradicts

GASB pronouncements.

The accompanying FFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by

GAAP: (1) the reconciliation ofthe balance sheet govemmental funds to the statement

of net assets, and (2) the reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and

changes in fund balances - govemmental funds to the statement ofactivities.

e't Measwemenl Focus and Basis ofAccourrling

Government-wide financial statements and DroDrietarv fund - The accompanling

CWFS and proprietary fund are prepared using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting. Subiect to the additional rules and limitations

detailed below, revenues (including interest on deposits and rent) are generally recorded

hen eamed and expenses are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless

ofthe timing ofrelated cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and

exchang€like transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. In

exchange transactions, each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially

equal values. An exchange-like transaction is one in which there is an identifiahle

exchange and the values exchanged, though related, may not be quite equal.

Nevertheless, the exchange characteristics of the exchange-like transaction are strong

enough to jusdry reat;ng it as an exchange for account;ng purposes (examples include

certain charges for services and m;scellaneous revenues, which are recorded as revenues

when cotlected because they are generally not measurable until actually received).

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions

are recorded using the c teria set forth by CASB Statement No. 33. Accounting and

Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transadions (GASB No. 33). GASB No' 33

established accounting and reporting standards for non_exchange transactions involving
cash and financial or capital resources (for example, most ta-r(es, Srants and private

donations). In a non-exchange tmnsaction, the Municipality gives (or receives) value

without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in retum- This is different from an

exchange transaction, in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.

According ro GASB No. 33, the Municipality groups its non-exchange tansactions into

the follo\]ving four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a) derived ta-t
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revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, (c) govemment mandated non-exchange

transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange transactions.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items.

Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection \!ith a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operat;ons. Relenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenue and expenses. The major operat;ng revenue of the Municipality's
enterprise fund is from r€nt charges collected principally from a Section 8 New
Consfuction and Substantial Rehabilitation ProgEm housing assistance gmnt agreement

with U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development.

ln the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments the

Municipality places on exchange transactions. receivables and revenues are recorded

u hen the underll ing e:.change has occuned.

In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and

municipal license taxes), which result from ass€ssments made by the Municipality on

nongovemmental entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange

transactions, receivables are generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal

claim has arisen. Property laxes and municipal license are genemlly recorded as revenues

(net ofamoiints considered not collect;ble) in the fiscal year when resources are required

to be used orthe first fiscal year that the use ofthe resources is permitted

Govemmenlmandated non-exchange transactions (such as gEnts and contributions)
result when a govemment at one level (such as the federal or state govemment) provides

resources to the Municipaliry and the provider govemment requires the Municipality to

use those resources for a specific purpose or purposes established in the provider's

enabling legislation. In these type oftransactions, receivables and rev€nues are generally

recorded when all eligibiliry requirements imposed by the provider have been met. For

the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend resources on the sp€cific pupose or
project before the provider reimburses any amounts. Revenue is, rherefore, generally

recognized as qualifling reimbursable expenditures are incuned.

Voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and

entitlements) result from legislative or contractual agreements, other than exchanges,

willingly entered into by two or more parties. I. these types oftransactions, receivables

and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as government-mandated

non-exchange transactions discussed above. Events that are neither exchange nor non-

exchange transactions are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and

the amount ofloss is reasonably estimable.

Receipts of any type of r€venue sources collected in advance for use in the following
fiscal year are recorded as uneamed revenues.

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the un-maturcd long-term
liabilities are rccorded only in the accompanying statement of net assets and the

statement of net assets - proprietary fund. The measurement focus and the basis of
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accounting used in the accompanying GWFS and the proprietary fund differ significantly
from the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the preparation of the
accompanying govemmental fund financial statements. Therefore, the accompanying
governmental fund financial statements include reconciliations, as detailed in the
accompanying table of contents, to better identiry the relationship between the GWFS
and the govemmental fund financial state ents.

Govemmental fund financial statements - The accompanying govemmental fund
financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
(flow of current financial resources) and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, the accompanying statement ofrcvenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances (deficits) govemmental funds, reports changes in the amount of financial
resources available in the near future as a result of transactions and events ofthe fiscal
year repofied. Therefore, revenues are genemlly recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are

collectible within the cunent fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities oFthe

current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality considers most revenues to be

available if collected generally within 90 days after June 30, 2012, except for property
tax€s for which the availability period is 60 days. Revenue sourc€s not meeting this
availability criterion or collected in advance are recorded as deferred (eamed and

una\ailable) re\enues at June 10. 2012.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property taxes,

municipal license taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovemmental grants and

contributions, interest on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue

sources meet both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying
govemmental fund financial statements, except for amounts recorded as defered (eamed

and unavailable) revenues.

ln a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria
discussed previously, all revenues. expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting
from exchange and exchang€-like transactions are also generally recorded when the

exchange takes place. Accordingly, certain charges for services and miscellaneous

revenues are recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

All revenues, expenses, gains, Iosses and assets resulting from non_exchange transactions

are recorded in a similar manner to the GWFS, using the previously discussed criteria set

forth by CASB No.33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to and limited by the

availabil;ty cr:teria discussed above. Accordingly, property ta-x and municipal l;cense ta\
receivables are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enForceable legal claim
has arisen while properry tax ?rnd municipal license ta.r revenues (net of amounts

considered not collectible) are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when resources

arc required to be used or the first fiscal year that the use ofthe resources is permitted.

Receivables and revenues from federal and state grants and contributions, donations and

entitlements are also genemlly recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been met (generally, as qualif,ing reimbursable expenditures are incurred

for expenditure-driven grants).
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Interest on deposits is recorded when eamed only if collected within 90 days after.the

fiscal year-eni since these revenues would be considered both measurable and available'

Pu.suant to the piovisions of GASB Interpretation No- 6, Recognition a d Measurement

o.f Ceflain Liaiilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements

lbaSef No. 6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an

applicable modification, discussed below) the Municipality generally accrues a

governmental fund liability and an expendilure (including salaries, professional services,

;upplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in which the govemment incurs the liability, to the

exient that these liabilities are normally expected to be liquidated with current available

financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the recognition criteria for certain

expenditu.es and liabilities reported under the modified accrual basis ofaccounting prior

to bASB No. 34, and clarified a number of situations in which the Municipality should

distinguish between govemmental fund liabilities and general long{erm liabilities'

Therefore, the accompanying balance sheet govemmental funds generally rcflects

assets that will be converted into cash to satis8 current liabi'ities. Long-term assets

(except for accounts receivables and inter-fund advances) and those assets that will not be

"onu".t"d 
into cash to satis& cunent liabilities are generally not accounted for in the

accompanying balance sheet _ govemmental funds. At the same time, long-term

liabilities (generally, those unmaturcd that will not require the use of current financial

resources 6 pay them) are not accounted for in the accompanying balance sheet -
goremmental fund..

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GASBI No. 5
include:

r Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when

paymint is due), except for principal and interest due on July l, 2012, which have

Leen recorded as govemmental fund liabilities at June 30, 2012, which is the date

when resources are available in th€ debt service fund (generally, June 30).

. Notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensated absences, and amounts

subject to accrued claims andjudgments under litigation are recorded only when they

mature (when payment is due).

. Certain accrued liabilities nol due and payable or not normally expected to be

liquidated with current available and expendable financial resources are recorded in

the accompanying statement of net assets. Such liabilities arc recorded in the

governmental funds when they mature.

. Executory purchase orders and contracts are recorded as a reservation of fund

balance in ihe go\ernmenlal funds l-FS.

The measurement focus ofthe governmental funds financial statements is on decreases of
net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are

measurable and are recorded when the related govemmental fund liabilify is incurred-

Allocation of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the

accompanying statement of activities and the statement of revenues, expenses and
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changes in funal net assets, but are not recorded in the accompanying govemm€ntal fund

financial statements.

Slewardship, Compliance and AccountabiliE

Budsetarv Control

According to Law No. 81, ihe Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual

budgets e-ach fi scal year for the Municipality's general fund and debt service firnd . Such

legaily adopted buigets are based on expected expenditures by progmm and 
-estimated

."ioui.., by.ou."". The annua! budgets are developed using elements of performance-

based program budgeting and zero_based budgeting, and include estimates of revenues

und oth".i".or.ces fo. the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at the

time the budgets are prepared.

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing oo July 1, an annual budg€tary

resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal AffaLs of the

Commonwealth (the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than the

immediately preceding May 10 and May 15, rcspectively. The Commissioner

preliminariiy verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable -laws 
and

regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before the

immediately preceding June 13.

The Mun;cipal Legislature has 10 business days, up to the immediately preceding June

ll, to discuss rn,l upp.ou" the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature

may amend the budgits submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to

cause a deficit without imposing taxes or identirying other sources of revenue to cover

such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the

Project, the modified Project is sent back to the Mayor for his approval or rejection

wit_hin 6 days. The Mayor may decrease or eliminate any line item but may not indease

or insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor ma! also veto the budgets intheir
entirety and retum it to the Municipal Legislature with his objections. If the Mayor

reject;the hoject, the Municipal Legislature will have up to eight (8) days to adopt or

rEect the recommendations oi objections of the Mayor. The approved Project is sent

again to the Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and approve it.

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines referred to above, the

annual buJgets for the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and.the

Mayor, are- automaticaliy renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal

Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgets This regrlation permits. the

Mrinicipality to continue doing payments for its operations and other purposes until the

new budgets arc approved.

The annual budgets may be updated for an] estimate re\ isions as $ell as fiscal year-end

encumbrances, ;nd may include any additional information requested b) the Municipal

Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets,

which are subject to the approval ofthe Municipal Legislature
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The MunicipaliB's Departrnent of Finance and Budget has the responsibility to ensure

,h",;;["d, ipendirig control is maintained For day-to{ay management control

.,,rnn...- 
"*o"riirur.. 

-plus 
enc,rmbrances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the

lxpenditure-rype lerel oi each cost center tactivity within a progam within a^fund) The

Miyo. *uy transfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within funds -The
Mu'nicipaliegislature may transfer amounts among progrcms within and among funds 

.

ihe legal levei of budgetary control (i.e., the level at \r'hich expenditurcs may not legally

exceeiappropriation)-is ai the function/program level (geneml govemment, urban and

""ono.ii 
'd"u"lop*"nt, public safety, heaith and sanitation, culture' rccreation and

education, and public housing and welfare) within a fund.

Under the laws and regulalions ofthe Commonwealth, the appropriations made for-any

fiscal year shall not ex--ceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for

said hscal year unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is

provided.

Budqetary Accountinq

The Municipality's annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP.

According to the budgetary basis ofaccounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash

is receirJd. Short-term and long-term borrowings may be used to finance budgetary

excess of expenditures over revenues.

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase

orders, contracts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions liom

the appropriation p.ior to actual expenditure. In the govemmental funds, enclmbrance

ac"ornting is a significant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures are

generally iecordeJ when the relateal expenditure is incurred or encumbered Availahle

ipp.op.iutions 
"nd "n"rmbrances 

are established to laPse one fiscal-year after the end of
the fisca1 year. Amounts required to setlle claims and judgments against the

Municipality, and certain other liabilities, are not recognized until they are encumbered or

otherwise irocessed for payment- Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances

lapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are

continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent

balance fiom the prior l ear be carried fonrird and made available lor current spending'

The accompanying budgetary comparison schedule - general fund provides information

about the lenerai fund:s o;iginal budget, its amendm€nts, and the actual results of
operations if such major gove-rnmental iund under the budgetalv basis ofaccounting for

the fiscal year ended-June 30, 2012. Further details of the Municipality's budgetary

control at ihe legal level may be obtained from the Budgelary Liquidation Report for the

fiscal year endei June 30, 2b12, which is prepared b] the Municip€lity's Dipartment of
Finanie. Copies ofthat report may be obtained b) $riting to the MunicipaliO's Director

ofFinance.
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Because accounting principles applied for the purposes of the deleloping data. on a

hudaehn baiis diiTei siqrificanilv from Lho'e u,ed lo presenl lhe govemmenlal fund

fina;cial statement5 in ionformitv with CAAP, a reconciliation of the differences

between the general and debt service funds' budgetary bases and CAAP actual amounts

are presenteiat the bottom ofthe respective budgetary comparison schedules'

E) Ilnrestricled and Restricled Deposils

The Municipality's deposits are composed of: (1) cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in

commercial banis, and (3.1 dernand deposits in the Govemment Development Bank for

Puerto Rico (fiscal agent)-

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonu'ealth, public funds deposited by the

Municipality in commeicial banks must be fully collateralized for the amounts-d€posited

in exceis oithe federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits

Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Agents designated by the Commonwealth's Secretary of
the Treasury, but not in the Municipaliry's name hold all securities pledged as collateral'

Cash in fiscal agent in th€ debt service fund consists of cash related to p'operty ta_x

collections amointing to $2,628,178, which is restricted for the payment of the

Municipality's debt service, as required by law. Cash in fiscal agent in the- capital

projects fu;d, amounting to $7,009,286 consists mainly of unspent proceeds of bonds,

wh;ch are restricted for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets'

Cash in fiscat agent of other govemmental funds, amounting to $326,983 represents

mainty the balanie of interest and non_interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the

operations of certain federal and state funded programs.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $68,657 in capital projects fund

represents mainly the balance of interest and non-interest bearing accounts restricted to

finance the operalions of certaiD federal and state lunded programs.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $1,128'379 in the legislative joint

resolutions firnd represents mainly the balance of interest and non-interest bearing

accounts restricted t; finance the opemtions of certain operating and capital grants from

the Legislature ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $22'1,921 in the special communities

trust fund represents mainly the balance of interest and non-interest bearing accounts

restricted to finance the operations of a state funded prognm used to carry out permanent

capital improvements to various communities in Aibonito.

Restricted cash in commercial banks, amounting to $466'976 in other govemmental

funds represents mainly the balance of interest and non-interest bearing accounts

restricted to finance the operations of certain state_funded and federally-funded operating

and capital gants.

Restricted cash in commercial banks of Las Flores Apartments (proprietary fund)'

amounting to $110,641, represents the batance of;nterest and non-interest bearing
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accounts restrictealto finance the project oPerations. Las Flores Apartments is required to

sei amounts for the replacement of property and other project expenditures, as approved

by the U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development'

llnresticted a d Restricted Accounls Receirable

Accounts receivable consist of all revenues eamed but not coll€cted at June 30, 2012'

These accounts recejvables are stated net of estimated rcserved for doubtful accounts,

which are determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current

economic conditions and the periodic aging ofaccounts receivable.

Activities among govemmental funds that are representative of lending'torrowing

arrangements ouistinding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either 'due

to/fro-m other funds" (i.e. the cunent portion of inter'fund loans) or "advances to/from

other funds" (i-e.. the non-current portion of inter_fund loans), as applicable All other

outstanding balances betwe€n funds are reported as "due to/from other funds "

Capilal Assels

Capital assets used in govemmental and business-type activities include land and land

improvements, buildin-gs, structures and building improvements, machinerY and

equipment (including equipment held under capital leases)' fumiture and fixtures,

liiensed vehicles, construction in progress, and infrastructure These assets are

capitalized and reported in the accompanying statement ofnet assets and the statement of
n"i r.."t. - p.op.i"tury fund. Infrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and

include roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and other sirnilar assets'

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an

individual cosi basis of $25 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or

improvem€nt, and with useful lives extending beyond one year' All assets with

iniividual costs under $25 or with useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged

directly to expense in the govemment-wide statement of activities and the statement of
revenues, expenses and chalnges in fund net assets. In the governmental funds, all cap;tal

assets are re;orded as caPital outlays (expenditures), while all assets with individual costs

under $25 are recorded as expenditures in the corresponding functiorL/program identified

with the asset.

ln the statement ofnet assets and the statement of net assets proprietary fund, all capital

assets are recordeal at cost or eslimated histor;cal cost if actual cost was unavailable'

except for donateal capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at rhe

date;fdonation. Estimated historical costs based on deflated current costs were used to

value a potion of the infrastructure constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2003 and

certain iands, buildings, structures and building improvements The method used to

a"n"i" ttr" 
"ur..nt "oits 

with an approximate piice index was used only in the case of

certain items for which the histoiical cost documentation was not available Actual

historical costs were used to value the infrastructure acquired or constructed after June
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30, 2003 as well as, construction in progtess' machiDery and equipment and licensed

vehicles acquired prior or after such date-

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement.of net

aislts as projects are constructed. Th; costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do

not add v;lu; to the asset ormaterially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized'

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only ;n the govemment-wide

sraiement of actir itie'. Hooerer, riere i. no deprecialion or amonizalion recorded for

land anal construction in progress. Depreciable capital assets are genemlly depreciated.or

amonired oler their estimaled usefui liues under the slraighl-line melhod except for

machinery and equipment heid under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter

of its estimated uieiul tife or the lease term. The estimated useful lives of major capital

asset categories are:

Land improvements

Buildings, structurcs and building improvements

Infrastructure
Motor vehicles

Furniture. fixtures, machinery and equipment,

excluding those held under capital leases

Office equipment held under capital leases

Years
20

30 to 50

20 to 50

5

5to20
3to5

Depreciation and amortization expense of capital ass€ts is recorded as a directexpense of
the function/prograrn specificaily identified with the asset Depreciation and

amortization of in-frastruciure is not allocaled to various functions/pro$ams but reported

as direct expenses of the urban and economic development function'

i) Defened Revenues

In the govemmental fund financial statements, deferred revenue arises when one of the

following situations occur:

. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for

revenue recognition in the current period (reported as "earned dnd undvailahle

revenue" in ihe accompanying batance sheergovemmental funds)' As previously

discussed, available is denned as due (or past due) at June 30,2012 and collected

within 90 days (60 days for property ta-res) thereafter to pay obligations due at June

30. In subsequent periods, whe; both criteria (measurable aod available) are met' the

liability for difened revenue is removed and revenue is recognized'

. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (r+orted as

"unearned'revenue' in the accompan) ing balance sheelgolemmenral funds) In

subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for

deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.
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Uneamed revenues at the govemment-wide and the proprietary fund levels arise only

wtren the Vunic;patity tece-ives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as

'liiio-na ,"unrr""' i, the accompanying statement of net assets) No "earned and

unavailable rerenue" is accounted for in the accompanying statement of net assets nor

the statement ofnet assets proprietary fund.

Compeisaled Absences

The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of-net

assets is limited to le;ve that: (1) is attributable to services already rendered on or before

June i0, 2012 and (2) is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of

the Municipality and the employee (such as illness). Compensated abserces that relate to

future se,.rices or are contingent on a specific event outside the control ofthe employer or

the employee are accounted for in the period when those services ar' rendered or those

events take place.

The liabiliry for compensated absences includes salary-related costs' which are directly

and incrementally r;lated to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as

employer's share ofsocial security ta.\es and medicarc taxes)-

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular

vacations at a rate of 2.5 days Per month (30 days per fiscal year) per employee'

Employe€s accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days per

fiscal yearl. Employees accumulate compensatory time at a rate of 15 times the

overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess

of 30 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees each fiscal y-ear, if not

consumed, as required by law ln the case ofcomp€nsatory time, the excess of240 hours

is paid to employees each fiscal year, if not consumed-

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all

accumulated unpaiil regular vacation leave at the cunent rate. In the case of regular sick

leave, if the employee-terminates his or her employment before reaching 10 years of

services, such regular sick leave is not paid to the employee, ifnot consumed ln addition

upon terminatio-n of employment, an employee does not receive compensation for

clmpensatory time, if noi consumed previously. After 10 years ofservices,-any regular

sick'leave balance is paid to the empl;yee. Accumulated vacation time is Fully vested to

the employee at any time.

The liability lor compensated absences is in the statement of net assets A liabil;ty for

"o.p..o,"a 
absences is reported in the govemmental fund financial statements only

when matured (when payment is due), for example. as a result ofemployee resignattons

or retirements.

Lot g-terrn Debt

The longlerm liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net assets inc'l de

the Mu;cipality's bonds payable, notes payable, and accrued compensated absences'
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All long-term debts to be repaial from govemmental resources is rcported as liabilities in

the acc;mpanying statemeni ofnet assets Principal and intercsi-payments on bonds due

on Jul) l. 20i2 irave been recorded as go\ernmenlal fund liabilitie' in the debt service

fund at June 30,2012, when.".ou."i, *.," available' In the golemmental frrnd

financial statements, the face amount of debt issued (gross debt proceeds) is reported as

other financing sources when issued.

In the govemmenlal activities of the GWFS, debt issuance costs have been capitalized

and reiorted as deferred charges, which are being amortized under the straight-line

method over the respective lives of the debts. In theGFFS, such costs are recorded as

expenditures as incurred.

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for underthe provisions ofOpinion No'

27, Interest on Reieirablis and Payables, issued by the Accounting Principles Board

(APB No.2l). According to APB No 21, the Municipality has recorded such notes at

present value with an imputed interest rate that approximates the rate that-would have

Leen used, using the same terms and conditions, if it had been negotiated by an

independent lend-er. ln the accompanying statement ofnet assets, suci notes.payable 're
reported net ofthe applicable unamoftiz;d discount, which is the difference between the

prlsent value and the iace amount ofthe notes. The discount is amortized overthe life of
ihe notes using the effective interest method. Amortization of the notes discount is

recoraled as pa-rt of interest expense in the statement of activities ln the GFFS, notes

discount is r€cognized as other financing uses as incurred.

m) Accounling fot Pension Cosls

For the purpose ofapplying the requirements ofGASB Statement No 27, Accountingfor

Pensions iy State ;nd Local Oorenment Etnplqers (GASB No 27), the state

govemmeniofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor ofthe

imployees' Retirement System of the Covemment of Pue(o Rico and Its
Instrumentalities (ERS) and 

'system 
2000, a multi-employer cost-sharing defined benefit

pension plan and a hybiid defi;ed contribution plan, respectively, in \a h ich the employees

if tle tr,iunicipatity participate. The Municrpaliry is considered a panicipant' and not a

sponsor, of tiese' retirement systems since the majority of the participants in the

aiforementioned pension trust funds are emplolees ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico

and the basic fi;ancial statements of such retirement slstems are part of the financial

reporting entity ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Accordingly, no portion ofthenet

p"'"ri."itrigit;." (NPo) related to ERS has been allocated to the Municipality in the

l.co.punyi,ig basic financial statements. The basic financial statements of the

Com.on.eatth of Puerto Rico report the total amount of the net pension obligation of

ERS, including any amount that may coffespond to the Municipality'

The Municipility accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participani ;n a

multipte-employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the

"""lrip".;iiig 
' t*i. financi;! statements are equal to the statutorily required

contributionslwith a liabiliry recorded for any unpaid required contributions'
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t) Risk Managenenl

The Municipality carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft' tort claims and

other losses. Insumnce policies are negotiated by the Common$ealth s Department of

i."u.ory (tft" O"prn."nt ofTreasuryl on behalfofall municipalities ofPuerto Rico The

o+*i")il.iri"^r.v pays the insurance premiums on behalfof the.lMunicipalitv and

tf,"'n i.."imbu.."d er"-tl hscal year through monthl) equal pa)'nents deducted-from the

il""i.ip"iity" g.*. p.perty tar collectiJns made by lhe Municipal Revenue Collect;on

Center ("CRIM:", by its bpanish acronyml, a govemmental entity responsible for billing

and collecting property t&\es on behalfofall municipalities of Puerto Rico'

The Municipality carries insumnce coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by

automobile acci;ent. This insurance is oLtained through the Automobile Accidents

Co.pensotion na.ioittration (ACAA, by its Spanish acronym)' a conponent.unit ofthe

Commonwealth. This insurance is compulsory forall licensed \ehicles used on public

roads and highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium applicable at June l0' 2012 is

$35 per licensed motor vehicle, which is paid directly to ACAA'

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance cor'erage through the State

Insurance Fund-Corporation (SIFC), a comPonent unit of lhe Commonwealth This

in,u.*"" 
"ou"., 

*orkers against injuries, disabilit) or death because of work or

".floy."nt_taru,"a 
accidentsl or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their

.rniiov.*,. Workers' compensation insurance premiums are also paid through monthly

deiuctions rnade by CRIM f;om the Municipality's Sross propetty tax collections'

The Municipality obtains un€mployment comPensation, non_occupational disability' and

drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through tarious insurance progEms

administered by the Commonwealth's Department of Labor and Human Resouces

(DOL). These insurance programs corer *o.kers against unemployment and^ provide

,upptJ."nt".y insr.un.. cou"iug" for temporary disabiliq, or death because ofwork or

"nipfoyr"nt_i"fu,"a 
accidents o; b€cause of iltness suffered as a consequence of their

emptoyment. Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and drivers'

inri,,"n"" p."rnioms 
".. 

paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis'

The Municipality atso obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance

i".p*i". i- iit 
",tpfoyees. 

Differ€nt health insurance coverage and premium options

are nesotiated each veai bl the Department of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality'

i;;;;;;'il;";;" policies lrane not been canceled or terminated ar June 30' 2012'

P;;;;;." paid on a monthly basis dir€ctly to the insurance company ln the past

three years, the Municipality has not settled claims that exce€ded insurance coverage'

o') Fu d Balances

On July 1, 2010, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB,Stat::"::.N" 54'

Frmd ilalanc" Reporting ancl Govemmental Fund Type Definirions (CASB^ 54) which

"r'f1"r."a 
,f," usei.rlness-of fund balance infomation by providing clearer fund balance

classifications that can be more consistently applied This stat€ment establishes fund

balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which

53



MUNICIPALITY OT AIBONITO
CO]ITMONWEALTH OT PUERTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements
Jun€ 30,2012

the Municipality is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use ofthe resources

reported in govemmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB 54, the accompan)ing CFFS repon fund balance

"a.r",. 
,f," aie considered nonspendable, such as fund balance associated. with

inventories. Other fund balances have been reported as restricted. committed' assigned'

""Jrnur.G*a, 
m"a 

"n 
the relative str€ngth of the constraints thal conlrol how specific

amounts can b€ spent, as described as follows:

a. Nonspentlable - Represent resources that cannot be sp€nt readily with cash or-are

legaliy or contractually required not to be spent, including but nol limited to

ini"nio.i"., p."puid iiems, and long term balances of interfund loans and

accounts receivable.

b. Rerfrcled - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes

stipulated by constitutional provisions, extemal resource providers (externally

imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislation--(that is'

legislation that creates a new revenue source and restricts its use)' Effectively'

re_strictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent ofresource providers'

c. Committed - Reprcsent resources used for specific purposes' imposed by formal

action of the Municipal's highest le!el of decision making authoriq (Municipal

Legisiature through iesolutions and ordinances) and can only be changdd by a

similar law, ordinance or rcsolution

d. Assigned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality. for

.p""ifi" pu.po.i, but do not meet the criteria to be classified as rest cted or

cimmittJa lgeneralty executive orders approved by the Mayo+ Intent.can he

expressed by'the Municipal Legislature, the Mayor or by an ofl'icial or body to

*liich the il'lunicipal Ligislature delegates authority in conformity with the

Autonomous Municipatities Act of Puerto Rico, as amended ln govemmental

funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining

arnount thal is not restricted or committed.

e. Llnassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general- 
fonJ ":na 

includes all spendable amounts not contained in the oTh€r

classifications. In other fundi, the unassigned classification is used onl) to relort

u a"n"it tutun"" resulting liom ouerspinding for specific purposes for which

amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned'

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the.amount that

will raise lhe fund balance to zero' Coisequently negalite residual amounls in

restricted, committed and assigned fund balance classifications ha!e been

reclassified to unassigned fund balances'

The Municip:lity reports resources constrained to stab;lization as a specified pur?ose

i*iri.r"a "i 
c#mined fund balance in lhe generat fLrnd) onl) if: lll'uch resources

;; l;;;;; ;tii.,i" fo, tho'. classificaions a5 described abote and l2r rhe

"i.*In.,un"", 
or conditions that signal the need for stabilizatiol are identified in

s,ificient detail and are not €xpecteal io occur roulinely. Ho,,!ever..the Municipality has

not entered into any stabilizationJike anangements, nor has set aside material financial
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resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balance

amounts as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012'

In situations when an exPenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available

in multiple fund balance classifications, the Municipality uses restricted resources first'

and then unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the Municipality generally

sfenas committed resources first, followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned

resources when expenditures,

The classification of the Municipalit)'s individual govemmental funds among geneml'

J"tt ,"*1"", special revenue and capital project fund tlpes used in prior fiscallears for

financial reporting purposes was not affected b) the implementation of CASB 54 ln
addition. tire financial positions and the results of operations reported in the

accompanying GFFS as oi and for the fiscal year ended June 30' 2012 have. not heen

aff""t"d fi. tii, ctlung. in accounting principle. Accordingly' the accompanling GFFS

have not reported anfretroactive resiaiemenis or reclassifications of fund equities as of

July l, 201 l.

p\ InlehfundActirities

The Municipality has the following tlpes of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter_fund

activities recorded among govemmental funds in the accompanying FFS:

. Inter-fund loatts - Represent resources (assets) provided by one govemment't fund

to otiier govemmentai fund with a requirement and commitment for repayment

i."i.tu..E "nt), 
*r,i"t are rccorded as : 

due Jron ' in rhe lender govemmental fund

and "due to" in the borrower govemmenral fund' lnter-fund receivables' which are

noi 
"on.id"."a 

to be cunelitly available financial resources' are reported as

"adrances". for amounts not e\pected to be collected' inter-fund

receivables/payables are realuced to their e;dmated realizable (settlemenU value' and

if'r. pJ;."'"i,tt" inter-fund loan that is not expected to be repaid is reported as a

"transfer-in" lrom the Eovemmental fund that provided the toan'

. Inter-fu\d tr..nslers (transfers'in/(o,rn - Represent flows.of assets (permanent

reallocation of financial resources among govemmental funds) *ithour equivalent

flolls of assets in reom and without a requirement for repalment lransters are

,"p.iriii'rn-Tr.rcingase.r"inthegovemmentallundmakin^gtransfersandas
"ithe, financing siurres" in the govemmentalfund receiving transfels'

. Inler-fund rcimbursements - Represent repaym€nts (reimbursements) from the

g"r",ir*"""f fund responsible for particuiar expenditures or expenses to the

govemmental fund that initially paid for them'

In the FFS, inter-fund actility has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP'
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COIUMONWEALTH OF PUf, RTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2012

q) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanyi[g basic financial statements in conformity widr

GAAP requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period- Actual results could differ liom those

estimates.

r) Fularc Adoplion ofAccounling Prot ouncemenls

The CASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30,

20t2:

. GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Acco ting and Financial

Reporting Guidcmce Contained in Pre-Norember 3A, 1989 FASB and AICPA

Ptonouncements (GASB 62). The requirements of this statement are

effective for the fiscalyear commencing on July I,2012.

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not

yet been determined.

2. Deposils

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico

and the Go;emment Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). Proceeds from all bonds

and the funds related to cefiain federal grant awards are required by law to be held with CDB'

On July 1, 2004, the Municipaliry adopted the provisions ofCASB Statement No 40 (CASB

No. 46), Deposit and Inwstment Risk Disclosttte, an Amend ent to GASB Statement No 3'

This statement requires that state and local govemments disclose essenlial risk information

about deposits and investments- The disclosure r€quirements cover four main areas: (1) credit

risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3) custodial oedit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure'

. Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investrnent

no futnll its obliSations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the

Commonwealth, the M-unicipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the

Stotement of lNesnnent Guideiines for the Go'remment of the Commomteahh of
Puerto Ric;. Accordingly, the Municipaliry is only allowed to invest its obligations

of the Commonwealthl obligations of the United States of Americ4 celtficates of
deposit, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances or in pools of obligations of the

Mirnicipalities of Puirto Rico, r'vhich are managed by CDB' -According 
to th€

aforemintioned investment guidelines' the Municipality is not allowed to invest in

marketable securities or any other type of investments for which credit risk exposu'e

may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the

c.edit risli.elated to any possible loss relited to defaults by commercial banks on the

Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2012'

56



3. Muoicipal Lic€nse Taxes

The Municipality is authorized by Act No. 8l to impose and collect municipal license ta-\es

to uny ,utu."t or legal person Laving trade or business activities within the territory of
aibonito. This is a ielf-assessed tax generally based on the business volume of ta'\payers'

measured by gross revenues. The Mu;icipalit] establishes the applicable ta( mtes At June

30, 2012. the municipal license tax rates imposed b1 rhe Municipalir) were 1'50 percent for

financial institutions and 0.50 percent for other types of taxPayers Any taxpayers that have

been granted with a partial iax exemption unJer any of the 
-tax .incentive 

acts of the

Comm"onwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced ta\ rates, generally

benveen 60 percent and 90 Percent under standard rates

MUNICIPALITY oF AIaoNITo
CoMMoNwEALTH oF PUERToRICo

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2012

Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates ofdebt investments

will adlersely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its

exposure to declines in fair values by: (l) not including debt investments in its

investments portfolio at June 30, 2012, (2) timiting the weighted average maturity of
its inlestments to periods ofthree months or less and (3) keeping most of its banks

deposits in interest bearing accounts genemting interest at prevailing market rates. At
June 30, 2012, the interest rate risk associated with the Municipality's cash.

Custodial crealit risk - In the case of deposils, this is the risk that in the event ofa
Gnk failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the

Statemenl of In'restment Guidelines for lhe Gowrnmenl of the Commo weabh o-f

Puefio Rico, the balances deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up to a
maximum ol $250,000 per depositor. In addition, public funds deposited in

commerciat banks by the Municipality are fully co,lateralized for the amounts

deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance All securities pledged as

coilateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents ofthe Commonwealth's

Secretary ofTreasury. Deposits olGDB, amounting to $9,964,447 at June 30, 2012,

are uninsured and uncollateratized. Ho\,!'ever, no losses related to defaults by GDB on

deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 10, 201-2 lt
is management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDl9 to

minimizi the custodial credit risk, except for GDB. Therefore, the Municipality's

management has concluded that at June 30, 2012, the custodial credit risk associated

w;th the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

For€ign exchange risk - This is the risk that changes in exchange mtes will

"dr"*"lr-ffe"tlh. 
,alue of an inlestment or a deposit According to the

aforementioned investment guidelines, adopted by the Municipality' the Municipaljty

is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types ofinvestments for

which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly, management

has conctud-ed that the foreign exchange risk related to the Municipality's deposits is

considered low at June 30. 2012.

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30,2012, are classified in the accompanying

balance sheet govemmental funds as follows:
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Each taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume

of businesithrough a tax retum filed every April 15, based on the actual volume of business

(revenues) eamei in the preceding calendar year. Taxpayers with a sales,volume of $l

million or more must include audited financial statements with their tax retum filings The tax

can be paid by the taxpayer in two equat installments due on July 15 and- January 15'

subsequ;nt to the filing ofthe declaration on Apil 15. The first installment-ofthe.tax covers

the six-month period inded December 31, subsequent to the filing date ofthe dedaraiion-

while the second installment of the ta-x covers the six_month period ended June 30 of the

subsequent calendar year. Ifa taxpayer elects to pay the ta-x in full on the filingdare ofthe

declaration (generally April l5), a 5 percent discount is granted automatically on the totaltax

amount due.

Any municipal license ta-tes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future-fiscal year)

ure.""o.ded u. un"a*"d revenues io the GWIS and the GFFS Total municipal license tax

receivable amounted to $4,J09 at June 30,2012. Deferred municipal license tax revenues

recoraled in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS amounted to $ 1,333'7'13 at June 30' 2012'

4. Property Taxes

The Municipality is authorized by Act No. 8l to impose and collect proPrty taxes from any

natural or legal person that, at January I of each calendar year: (1) is engaged i" lmd€ or

br.ines. *d"is th" o*ner of personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns

.".ia"ntiut ,.ut p.op".ty witlr i vatue in excess of$15,000 (at 195? estimated market prices)'

CRIM is responsible for the billings and collections of real and personal property ta-xes on

t"nulf of tl" Vunl"ipulity Prior; the beginning ofeach fiscal )ear.-CRlM^informs to the

Urri"ip"fi v ,ft" ",ti'."ed 
amount of properry tai expected to be-collected.for.the ensuing

ffu"rr yi"i. 'rr,r"rgrl.rt the fiscal year, CiUM advances funds to the Municipality based on

the in'itial estimated collection amounts for the fiscal year' CRIM is required by law to

f."p"r" u ,ettl.."nt .tut"ment on a fiscal )ear basis, \ hereb) a comparison is made between

ihe'amounts advanced to the Municipalii and the property ta\ amounrs actually collected

ii", i"*p^y".t." U"t 
"lf 

ofthe Municipality during ihe fiscal,year' .fhis settlement has to be

"o.pi"tJJ 
on u pt"f;.inary basis not laier than December j I following the fiscal year end'

Personal property taxes are self_assesseil by taxpayers every year using the,book value of

nersonaloroDerwassetsownedbytheta-rpayeratJanuaryl(assessmentdate)andrepolting
!r"'i"-^ir.'"ri'r" ,r,-ugh a personal property ta'\ retum fited on May 15 subsequent to the

u,."..a"nt aut". The toLl personal ptop.'ty't* rate in force at June 10 2012 uas 600

p"."*, i"i rfti"ft ot payers'pay 5.80 peiceni and the remaining 010 percent is paid by the

Department ofTreasury, as a subsidy).

Real property taxes are assessed bI CRIM' The assessment on real property is made every

i""r"if i r"'a i. t"."a on estimat;d current values ofthe property' deflated to 1957 market

piil...' fn. totut ."ut property tax rate in force at Jun€ lo, 2012 was 8 00 percent (ofwhich

i.80 p"...nt is paid by ta-\payers and the remaining 020 percent is also paid bv the

Depa(ment ofTreasury, as a subsidy).
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Residential real property occupied by its owner (not engaged in hade or business) is exempt

from propety taxes only on the first $15,000 ofthe assessed value (at 1957 market prices)'

For eiempt amounts, the Department ofTreasury assumes the payment ofthe basic tax (4 00

percent and 6.00 percent for personal and rcal property, respectively), except for property

assessed for less than $3,500 (at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by the

Department ofTreasury.

According to Act No. 81, included uithin the total personal and real property ta.x rates of 5-80

percent and 7.80 percent, r€spectively, there is a ler] ofan annual special tax of 1 03 percent

of the assessed value of all ieal and personal property not exonerated from ta.\ation- This

special tax is levied by the Commonwealth but is collected by CRIM. Collections of this

special tax are directly rem itted by CRIM to the Commonwealth's debt service fund' for the

pa),ment ofthe general long{em debt ofthe Commonwealth.

In addition, included within the total personal and real property tax mtes of 5 80 percent and

7.80 percent, respectivety, there is a portion ofthe tax rate in the amount of 2 00 percent that

is ,estricted for ihe Municipality's debt s€rvice requirements on bonds. Such amounts arc

recorded in the Municipality's debt sewice firnd.

Furthermore, included within the total personal and.eal property tax rates of 5 80 percent and

7.80 perceni, respectively, there is a portion of the ta-x rates that is recorded in the

Municipality;s general fund, of which a portion is restricted for the palment of: (1) the

insu.un"" i.".iurs acquired through the Depanment of Treasury' 12)-the monthly

contribudo;s to CRIM, which are statutoril) required as the Municipaliq's share ofCRIM

operating expenses, (4) statutory contributions to the Puerto fuco Health Services

Aa*in;,iotion (pniSa), as the Municipalitv's share of the cost of the public h€alth

insu.ance coverage provided to qualiling low-income citizens, (5) certain notes payable 10

CRIM and. (6)'ceiain amounts due to certain agencies and component units of the

Commonwealih, which are recorded within intergovemmentat payables in the accompanling

cWis una Cpis. The 0.20 percent of unrestricied personal aod real property ta'xes paid by

the Department ofTreasury aj a subsidy is recorded in the Municipality's general fund'

The Additional Lottery System of the Commonwealth (the Additional Lottery) is an

oferational ,rnit reported;s an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth's basic financial

statements. which ;urrently operates several betting altematives to the citizens of Prerto

Rico. The Additional Lonery is required every fiscal year to distribute a portion of its excess

ofrevenues over expenses as follows:

. Thirty five percent of its net eamings (defined as the excess of relenues over expeoses

t"ss an umount earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home lmfroremenl Subsidy

i'."g.". f- itt" Low-lncome Qualifoing Elderly) is earmarked to the municipalities of

thetommon*ealth, of which a ma*ilmum of $26 miuion, on an annual basis' is

Ji".itr"a a the Municipal Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operating

expenses and permanent improvements of the municipalities'

. An additional amount not exceeding $16 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the

Municipal Equalization Fund, prov-ided it is within the thirty-five percent corresponding

to the' mun;ipalities of thi Commonwealth wlen the accumulated municipal
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appropriations from the municipalities' Puerto Rico Health R€form are covered up to
June 30, 1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA.

At June 30,2012, propefty taxes receivable recorded in the general and debt service fund

amounted to $ 1,037,334 and $ 73,392, respectively, net ofa reserve for doubtful accounts.

5. Sales and Use Taxes

The Municipality imposes a sales and usage tax within the territorial limits of the

Municipality pursuant to the Intemal Revenue Code of the Govemment oi Puerto Rico. This

is a self-assessed ta-.( consisting of one and a halfpercent (1.5%) on the sale price of a ta-xable

item or on the purchase price of all usage, storage or consumption of a taxable item. It is

collected monthly in a ta,\ relum that is due twenty calendar days after the end ofeach month.

A portion ofthe sales tax amounting 0.2olo is restricted for the payment of long_term deht and

is recorded in the debt service fund- The remaining portion of 1.3% is recorded in the

general fund since is available for general operating purposes.

Sale t&x receivable rcpresents sales tax levied that were collected subsequent to June 30,

2012, but pertaining to current year period. At June 30, 2012, the sales and use taxes

receivable amounted to $51,641.

6. Construction f,xcise Taxes

The Municipality imposes and collects municipal construction excise ta-xes to.most natural

and legal persons and any governmental instrumentatity that carr) out activities related to

construction, expansion, majot repairs, relocations, altemtions and other types of permanent

improvements to residential, commercia! and industrial buildings and structures within the

t€rr;torial area of the Municipality. The tax is also applicable to infrastructure projects, the

installation of machinery, equipment and fixtures, and other types of construction-related

activities.

The construction excise ta-{ generally is a self_assessed ta,x imposed over the cost of the

projec! net of certain exemptions such as the costs associated with the acquisition of land,

project aesign and other engineering fees, licenses and permits, legal and accounting fees,

ani most mi.keting and advertising iosts. The tax is paid by the taxpayer at the beginning of
th€ project.

All single-family residential construction Projects not related to housing development

projectsl condominiums, or any similar projects, are partially exempt from construct;on

.r."it" tu*... In addition, a portion of all single-family residential improvement projects are

exempt from construction excise t.xes. All projects carried out on buildings and structures

classified as historical treasures by the Pue(o Rico Planning Board have an in th€ tax rate

applicable to construction excise taxes.

Construction excise tax receivable represents taxes that were collected subsequent to June 30,

2012, but pertaining to current year period. At June 30' 2012, the construction excise ta'xes

receivable amounted to $24,473.
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7. Ilter-fundTransactions

The composition of inter-fund balances at June 30, 2012 and for the fiscal year then ended is
as follows:

Capital
Gene.al projecis
fund fund

Other Total
Debtservice governmental governmental

fund funds fundsDue {rom:

Major govemmental tunds:

General furd
Legislative joint resolurions tund

Spe€ial comrnunities trust fund

Other goverrunental fu nds

Tot.l

T nsfer fiom:
Major govemmenlal fu nds:

General tund
Total

$ - 747,853 40
826,803

502

298,660 $ 1,046,553

826,803

502

1.900.733 7t2 1.90 t.445

$ 2.728.038 748.565 40 298,660 $ 3,775.303

Tronslet to otltet lmd\:
Capital Sfecial Other Total
projects Debtservice communities governmental governmenhl

fund fund trust fund funds funds

$ 309.243 606 3,850 337 $ 3 Eplq
$ 309,243 606 3,850 337 $ 314,036

This Space Has Been Lefi Blahk Inlentio ally
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8. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Balance

.Inne30.20ll

10,121,055

18,550,120

2.917,203
921.500

Additions

Balance
at

.rune 30.2012

COST BASIS:
Cost basis ofcapital ass€ts, not subiect

to depreciation and amortization:

Infraslructure land

Construction in pro$ess

Total cost bash ofcapital assets, not

subject to depreciation and amortization

Cost basis ofcapital assets, subject to

depre€iation and amortiz?tion:
Buildings, structues and building improvements

Infi'astructure

Land Improvem€nts

Licensed vehicles

Fumiture, fi\rure\. machtnery and equipmenr

Total cost basis of capilal assets subject

to depreciation and amortization

Total cost basis of capital assets

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:

Buildings, structures and building improvements

ln{iastructure
Licensed vehicles

Fumiture, fixtures, ma€hinery and equipment

Total ac€umulated depreciation and amortization

CAPITAL ASSETS,NET

$ 15,357,537 S 455,000 $ 15,812,537

6a) )40 I 798.786 2.451.0)6

t6 noo ??7 2.25J.780 l8.2qil!L

6,249,784-

10,121,055

24,199.904-

2.9',t 7 ,203
r 14.844 l.016,14l

$ 4,554,s23 $

4,859,668

2,862,948

446,885 $

1,143,382

278.309

5,001,409

6,003,050
3,t11,251

i r.ioa.878 0.161.0'8 i8,oj4,506

s +r s,q.o.' 5 8.o18.114 S 57.r:qP!a

Balance D€Preciation and Btlance

al Amortization at

June 30,2011 ExDense June 30' 2012

?01.842 llc.) lo 8U,!!L
- I I nan q*r I 987.79J 15.028.?74

_q l.ilrr._,t $ o.bi0.o2l S t12.l6q2a5

activities for the fiscal Year
the accompanying statement

,\ es9!!49!!!u4!vlb

Deprcciation and amortizat;on exPense of govemmental

ended June 30, 2012 was charged to functions/programs in

of activities as follows:
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Ceneral govemment

Public safety

Public housing and welfare

Urban and economic development

Culture. recreation and education

Total deprcciation and amortization expenses

b) Business-i,pe Aclivilies

MUNICIPALITY OT AIBONTTO

COMMONWEALTH OT PUf,RTO RICO

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2012

Cost

beginningof

Totrl
deprecirtion

$ 55,076
) <))
) )15

t,925,936
1 AA11

- tBs?,?r3

Cost

R L s i n e s s -l! P e oclirit i e s :
Cost bdsis:

- Capitalassets. not be ing deprec iated _ land 5 126,150

Total capital assets. nolbeirg d.preciaEd

_ Capnalassels.beingdep.eciated:

Buildines, nrudures. md imProvemenls

Land improvemenls

Machin(D md equipmtrL d tumilure

Toial capiBl assett bein8 deprcciated

_ 
,otal cosl bdis ofcapilal dsets

fi\.ql !.,r Additrons Relirements lirc,lye.r

- $ 126. r 50

126.150 - t26.t50

4,345,427 4.494 (l t5,500) 4,234'421

267.559

424,420

- 267.559

atbeginning D€P.eciatio.

639 (13.05?) 412'002

lo._,qoo )llr {128.i5-) 4.olj.q82--5-ij6]Jj6 
-----.-jjr 

--(ltE5rt -T--t io-,irt

Accumulated depreciation and amoniation:

Buildin8s, structures, and improvements

Land improvemerts

Machinery and equipmenl, and

tumnure ed fixtures

.rfi\.,t t.,r Renrement' fiscrl year

$ 2.819,368 t54,462 (115,500) $ 2,856'330

187,040 I I,148 - 198,188

)0 90. I 11.0i_) 241 201

to.a' cccumul.rcd dep,.c r,-0 ,l 'v, ,,0 

-.18o:11-b 

{ l:8'tr) ---F--+:r+
Ner capitalasets- busines-type rctirnies -- 1,9247% (181,383) - $ 1.742,413

Depreciation and amortization expense of business-type activities, amounting to $186,516

lor the fiscal year ended June :0, ZO1Z, *as charged to the Public housing and welfare

lunction in lhe accompanying stalemenl oIacli\ ilieq.
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9. Long-TermObligations

The genemi long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Gow neatal octitities:

bwinningof Borrowings

fiscrly.rr

11,779.9t0

ore year

s 415.000
Ceneml obligation serial bonds

Municipal Revenue Colledion Cente.

Larv No 146 ofodober ll.200l

Compensated absences

Total for golemmenial a.tivities

$ 1.1.186.6r6 2,572,816r66.1l0

124,607

1.192-906

18.000 106,607 16,088

l.l40,o2l 581,8J It47.715

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate the notes payable to CRIM, the

Puerto Rico Heaiih Services Administration and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury'

compensated absences, obligations under capital leases and any other long-term liabilities

other than bonds.

^\ Debt Limilaliott

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the contracting ofdebts,ofthe

Municipatity. Ne-vertheless, th; laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico also provide that:

. Direct obligations ofthe Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds) are backed

by the full faith, credit and taxing power ofthe Municipality; and

. Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality if the amount.of the

principal of: and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all

i,onds and notes issued thereafter) which are payable in an) fiscal year' together with

any amount paid by the Municipalit) in the preceding fiscal )ear on account ofbonds

or bond antiiipation notes guaranteed by th; Municipaliry, exceed 10 percent ofthe

total assessed value ofthe property located within the Municipaiity plus the balance

of the ad valorem t"t.. in ih" debt service fund, for bonds payable and bond

( tii04 t)g l.82j 2.rqr.8tb t122-.1J8 i l0,2.oln

s 865.208 85.205 780.003 s 8?.582

S 80i.208 - 8i.20t -8n.001 $ 81.582

R usiaess-typ. aaiv ni.s

Mortgrge notes p.yable

Total for busines-q?e actvities
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anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of property t&\es restricted fo. debt
service.

b) Bonds PaJ,dble

The Municipality issues general obligation and public improvement serial bonds to
finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to
finance certain operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain
circumstances.

The lavr's and regulations of the Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public
debt will coostitute a first claim on the available revenue ofthe Municipality. Public debt
is composed of bonds payable. The good faith, credit and taxing power of the
Municipality are irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment ofthe principal and interest
ofbonds.

As more fully described in Note 4, the Municipality levies an annual additional special
property tax of 2.00 percent ofthe assessed value of personal and real propeffy. The
proce€ds ofthis additional special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at the
Covemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico, fiscal agent, whereby sufficient funds
are set aside to redeem the bonds payable of the Municipality in minimum annual and
semiannual principal and inlerest payments. The collections of this special tax are
recorded in tbe Municipality's debt service fund.

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total
principal to be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30,2012:

Outstanding
balance

General Oblisation Bonds:

Municipal general obligations bond series 1991-1992 (face amount of
$572,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $14,000 to
$,+1,000; plus interest at 5.00% through July, 1,2016-

Municipal general obligations bond series lq95-1996 (fac€ amount of
$1,040,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $15,000 to

$90,000; plus interest at variable rates (6.28% at June 30,2012) through

July, l, 2020.

Municipal general obligations bond series 1995-1996 (face amount of
$i32,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $6,000 to

$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (,+.50% at June 30,2012) through
July 1,2028.

15t.000

620,000
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Outstanding

Municipal general obligations bond series 2001-2002 (face amount

$575,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $10,000 to
$50,000; plus interest at variable rates (4.50% at June 30, 2012) through
July, 1,2026.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2002-2003 (face amount

$310,000) due in annual principal installments ranging liom $5,000 to

$10,000; plus interest at variabl€ rates (4.73% at June 30,2012) through
July 1,2027.

Municipal general obiigations bond series 2004-2005 (face amount of
$465,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $10,000 to

$35,000; plus interest at variabl€ rates (4.73% at June 30,2012) through
July 1,2029.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2005-2006 (face amount of
$485,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to

$35,000; plus interest at variable rates (4.73% at June 30,2012) through
July 1,2030.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2007-2008 (face amount of
$800,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $25,000 to

$85,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30, 2012) through
July 1,2022.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2006-2007 (face amount of
$380,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to

$35,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.5J% at June 30, 2012) through
July l, 2032.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2005-2006 (face amount oi
$190,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to
$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June 30, 2012) through
July 1, 2021.

Municipal general obligations note series 2007-2008 (face amount of
$2,965,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $60,000 to

$265,000; plus interest at variable rates (1.53% at June i0, 2012) lhrough
July 1,2029.

460,000

250,000

390,000

430,000

670.000

360,000

r45,000
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June 30,2012

Outstanding
balance

Municipal general obligations bond series 2010-2011 (face amount of
$1,435,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to
$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (6.00% at June 30,2012) through
J]uly 1,2021.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2010-2011 (face amount of
$2,710,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to
$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (6.00% at June 30,2012) through
July 1,2021.

Municipal general obligations bond se es 2010-2011 (face amount of
$705,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $5,000 to

$20,000; plus interest at variable rates (6.00% at June 10,2012) through
ldy 1.202t.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2010-2011 (face amount of
$440,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $50,000 to

$80,000; plus interest at variable rates (6.00% at June 10,2012) through
July 1,2017.

Municipal general obligations bond series 2011-2012 (face amount of
$190,000) due in annual principal installments ranging from $4.200 to

$10,510; plus interest at variable rates (4.00% at June 30, 2012) through
January 1,2035.

1,405,000

2,6',70.000

655,000

390,000

161,910

Total bonds palables

Va.iable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based
on the floctuation of GDB'S weighted average rate for its commercial paper program.
Under this program, GDB issues commercial paper: (l) in the taxable and tax-€xempt
markets of the United States of Americ4 (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to
corpomtions having tax exemptions under the Commonwealth's lndustrial Incentives
Acts and, which qualiry for benefits provided by the former Section 936 of the U.S.
lntemal Revenue Code. Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds payable
are as follows:

11,119,9r0
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Fiscal year
ending June

30,
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018-2022

2023-2027

2028-2032

2033-2036

Pdncipal
415,000

518,500

534,600

594,000

573,200

3,014,100

2,695,500

2,499.400

935.610

Interest
749,128

762.4',73

738,797

701,227

660,602

2,669,340

1,705,442

728,602

l3l,145

Total
1,164,128

t,2.80.9 73

t,273,39',7

1,233,802

5,68i,440
4,400.942

3,228.002

1,068.755

11,119,910 8,848,756 20,628,666

At June 30, 2012, accrued interest payable on bonds amounted to $24?,414.

b) Latt No. 1r'6 - On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto
Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GDB pursu,mt to the provisions of Law No.
146 of October 11, 2001, as amended (Law No. 146). The purpose of this financing
agreement was to extinguish in advance certaifl bonds payable ;ssued by Public Finance
Corporation (PFC), a subsidiary of the Covemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico,
which were originally issued to pay certain property ta.x receivables owned by the
munic ipalities of Puerto Rico through I 996, which were acqu ired by PFC with recourse.
The outstanding principal amounted to $106,60? at June 30.2012.

c) Modgage Noles Payable (business-tlpe actirities)

The long-term debt of Las Flores Apartments (FHA and HUD Project No. 63-005-660-41-
35?2) consists of 1 mortgage note, secured by the Federal Housing Administration and by a

first mortgage on rental property. Principal and interests in monthly installments of$11,654
are payable liom the proceeds ofthe rent coll€cted from the tenants- The Federal govemment
provides housing assistance payments to qualified tenants to subsidize most of the monthly
rent. This housing project is administered by a private entity- At June 30, 2012, the
outstanding principal balance ofthe mortgage note amounted to $780,003.

10. Employees' Retirement Systems

^) Plan Desc prion

The Municipality's employees participate in the Employe€s' Retirement System of the
Govemment of Pueno Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi-
employer (as r€lated to the Mun;cipality's reporting €ntity) defined pension plan

established by the Commonwealth. Substantially all full-lime employees of the
Commonwealth and substantially all municipalities are covered by ERS under the terms
of Public ActNo.447 of M^t' 15, I95I, as amended (Act No.447). All regular and
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temporary employees of the Muricipality become plan membe$ of ERS at the date of
employment, while it is optional for officers appointed.

ERS members, other than those joining it after March 31, 1990, are eligible for the
benefi ts described below:

. Relircment Annui'l

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age:

Policemen and firemen:
50 with 25 years ofcredited service
58 with l0 years ofcredited service

Other employees:
55 with 25 years ofcredited service
58 rr ith l 0 years of credited service

ERS members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determin€d by the
application of the stipulated benefit ratios to the member's average compensation.
Average compensation is computed based on the highest 36 months ofcompensation
recognized by ERS. The annuity, for which a member is eligible, is limited to a
minimum of $300 per month and a maximum of 75 percent of the average
compensation.

. Merit Annuity

ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of30 years or more of
cr€dited service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limited to a
minimum of65 percent and a maximum of75 percent ofthe average compensation.

. Defefied Retirement Annui',

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after
having accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited service qualifies for
retirement benefits provided hie&er contributions are left in ERS until reaching 58
years ofage.

. Cootdinaled Plar,

On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reach€s 65 years old and begins to
receive social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the following:

(a) $165 per month, ifretired \aith 55 years of age and 30 years ofcredited
service.

(b) $l l0 per month, ifretired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years of
credited senice.

(c) All other behveen $82 and $100 per month.
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(d) Disabilit] annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age
65 and in some cases can be rcduced over $165 per month.

. Non-Cootdinaled Plan

On the non-coordinated plan the participating employee and does not have any
change on the pension benefits upon receiving social security benefits.

. Rewrsionary Annuily

An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement
annuii]- giving one or more benefit payments to his,4rer dependents- The life annuity
payments would start after the death ofthe retiree for an amount not less than $240
per year or gleater than the annuity payments being received by the retir€e.

. Occupatioial Disabilit! Annuit!

A participating employee, who as a direct result of the performance of his/her
occupation is totally and permanently disabled, is eligible for a disability annuity of
50 percent of the compensation received at the time ofthe disability.

. Non-occupational Disahiliil Annuiir

A participating employee, totally and permanently disabled for causes not related to
his/her occupation and with no less than l0 years ofcredited service, is eligible for an
annuity of 1.50 percent ofthe average compensation ofthe first 20 years of credited
services, increased by 2 percent for every additional year ofcredited se ice in excess
of20 years.

. Dealh Beneffts

Occupatiolol:

(a) Survivins spouse annuity equal to 50 percent of the participating
employee's salary at the date ofthe death.

(b) Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or studen! up to a
maximum benefit per family ol$ 100.

Non-occupalional:

EgggEgigq - the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death
plus an amount equal to the annual compensation at the time ofthe death.

Beneficiary with surviving spouse age 60 or over and a child, lE or under, up to 30
percent (60 percent, if not covered under Title II of the Social Secu ty Act)
(increased to 50 percent effective January l, 2005) ofretiree's pension or otherwise
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the excess, if any, ofthe accumulated contributions at the time ofretirement over the
total annuity benefits received before death, limited to a minimum of$750.

. Refunds

A participating employee who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality
without the right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund ofthe contributions
to ERS plus any interest eamed thereon.

. Cost oJ Living Adj ustmer,t for Pension Benefits

Public Act No. 10 of May 21, 1992 (Act No. l0) provided for increases of 3 p€rcent
every three or mo.e years of retirement. Act No. l0 requires further legislation to
grant this increase every three years subject to the presentation of actuarial studies
regarding its costs and the source of financing. To prctect the financial health of
ERS, the increase granted during 2001 and the one granted on January 1,2005 are
being financed by the Municipality and the other participating employers.

To avoid any economic impact on ERS, the employers are responsible for
contributirlg to ERS the amounts to cover the benefit payments and the employer and
employee contdbutions with respect to $e participants covered until the participants
reach lhe normal reliremenl aBe.

. Amendnunt lo Act No. 447 effectiye Ja uary I, 2000 to crcate a De|lrred
Contibution Plar,

On September 24, 1999, Public Act No- 305, an amendment to Act No.4-47, was
enacted to establish a defined contribution plan, known as System 2000, to cover
employeesjoining ERS on or after January 1, 2000.

Employees that participated in the origiDal plan as of December 31, 1999, had the
opportunity to elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to System
2000. Employees thatjoined the Municipality on or after January l, 2000, were only
allo\.r'ed to become members ofSystem 2000.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance
plan. Under this new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the
System, together with those ofthe cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan.
Neitherthe Commonwealth nor the Municipality guarantee benefits at retirement age-
The annuity is based on a formula which assumes that each fiscal year the
employee's cont bution (with a minimum of 8.28 percent of the employee's salary
up to a maximum of l0 percent) is invested as instructed by the employee in an
account which either: (1) eams a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity
Treasury Notes, (2) eams a rate equal to ?5 percent of the retum of the ERS'
investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) eams a combination of both
alternatives. Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of
defined contribution plans sho'ring their accrued balances. Disability benefits are
not granted under System 2000, rather are provided to those participants that

7t



MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo
CoMMoN"rvf,ALTH oF puf,RTo RICo

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2012

voluntarily elect to participate in a private insurance long{erm disability program.
The employers' contributions (9.28 percent ofthe employee's salary) with respect to
employees under System 2000 will continue and will be used to fund the cost-sharing
multi.employer defi ned benefi t plan.

System 2000 reduced the retirement ag€ from 65 years to 60 for those employees
who j oined the curent plan on or after Jan uary I , 2000.

Historically, the state govemment ofthe Commonwealth ofpuerto Rico has reported
ERS and System 2000 in its bas;c financial statements as pension trust funds.
Accordingly, the Commonwealth is currently assuming any actuarial deficiency that
may exist or arise related to the Municipalir)_'s pa(icipating employees because ERS
does not allocate to the Municipality any actuarial deficiencies pertaining to
participating municipal employees. The Municipaliry is only required by law to
make statutory contributions at the rates detailed below.

. Recent Amendments to Act No.447

The Senate and the House of Representatives ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
have the authority for establishing or amending the contribution requirements of
System 2000 by approving the necessary amendments or laws, subject to the final
approval of the Govemor ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico.

In June and July 2001, the Covemor ofthe Commonwealth signed three Public Acts
that provided the following cerlain benefits 10 retirees:

(a) Increase in minimum monthly pension payments to $300, effective
January l, 2005.

(b) Triennial 3 percent increase in all pensions, effective January 1,2005.

(c) Increase in widow and/or beneficiaries to 50 percent of the benefit
received by the deceased pensioner, effective January 1, 2005.

All the benefits ganted will be funded through budgetary assignments in the
Municipality's general fund with respect to its retired employees.

The Board ofTrustees of ERS approved, effective November 17, 2003, an increase in
the amount granted on personal loans to participating employees from $3,000 to
$5,000.

b) Funding Policy

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not actuarially
determined. These contributions are as follows:

Municipality and
other employers

9.28 percent ofapplicable payroll
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Employees:
Coordination plan: 5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600

per year, plus 8.28 percent gross salary in
excess of$6,600.

Supplementation 8.28 percent ofgoss salary. This is the
plan: only choice available to policemen,

firemen and mayors

The contr;bution requirement to System 2000 is also established by law and is not
actuarially determined. These contributions are as follows:

Mun ic ipality and 9.2 8 percent of appl icable payroll
other employers
Employees: 5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600

per year, plus 8.28 percent gross salary in
excess of$6,600.

11. Commilments and Cortingencies

The Municipality has reported, outstanding encumbrances amounting to $675,038 in the
general fund at June 30, 2012. The Municipality intends to honor these encumbrances,
which will coniirde to be liquidated under the cunent year's budget during a lapse period
that extends into the subsequent fiscal year.

12. Futrd Balances

As ofJune l0 2012, fund balance is comprised ofthe foJlowing:

- Fun.l bolances:

Restd.ted:

- Debt serice $ - 2,1t5,82q

r r74rll

- AssiCned for:

General govemmenl 675,038

Legislitive Special

Debt joint Capilal communitiB Other

General service resolurion projects trlst governmerld

fund furd fund furd fDnds funds Totil

Federal tunded progams 784 1,920.s22 1.921,306

- $ 2,115,829

- 8,601,701

- 675.038

6.837 '
- Total i-und balances $681,875 2,115,829 1.576-43.1 7,025-269 784 1.920,522 513,320.713

- 6,E17
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Actual Variance

amounts with final

Budget€d amounts (budgetary budget_

Orisinal Final basis) over (under)

Revenues

Property taxes

Municipal license la.{es

Sales and ose taxes

Construction excise t (es

Charges for services

Intergovemmental grants and contributions

Interest

Miscellaneous

Other financing sources

Total revenues and other financing sources

Exnenditures
Cunent:

General govemment

Public safety

Urt'an and economic development

Health and sanitation

Culture. recreation and education

Public housing and welfare

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues and other financing souces

over expenditures

9,519,083 10,168,912

$ 2,087,16t

1,650,000

300,000

190,000

38,000

3,9',t2,804

56,000

r,225,118

2,087,r61

1,764,688

501,170

189,053

50,887

3.9',72,801

118,492

1,361,671

i6,308
l 10,465

190,075

16,319

4.216.124

101,358

3,165,322

t.t5l,'764

4.567,644

101,63i

4,327,"112-

1.229,664

242,279_

3,878,373 $

90,890

3.36',7,423

587,125

t,175,562

236,9t7

(689,2'7 t)
(r0,743)

(960,289)

58',7,t25

(s4,r02)
(5,i62)

68?,4i,1 687,414

9,519,083 I0,468,9i2 10,023,724 (445,208)

r.133,162 $ 1,133,162

2.087,t6l
1,800,996

6l 1,635

5',79,128

61,206

3,912,804

396,519

|,321.825

58,027

(36,852)

313,61231t.612

11,156,886
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Fed€ralCFDA Pass-through
Number Grtntor'sNumber ExDenditures

- U.S. Department of Housing and Urbatr
DeveloPment

- Section 8 Housing Assistance Payment 14.182 RQ46R000013 $570,298

_ S€ction 8 Housing Choice Voucher 14.871 RQ-059 $29!,041

Pass-through of the State-Ofice of the

\4unicipal Affairs Commiqsioners -
* Community Development Block

Grant/state Adminisiered Smalt Cities 14.228 2012-0C)1776 1,161,781

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid

Rehousing Program (ARRA Funded) 14.257 FR-5307-N-01 194,423

- Total U.S. Department of Housing and

Urban Development 2'211,549

Total Federal Financial Assistance $2,217.549
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Notes to Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal Auads
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General

The accompanying Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal Awards inctudes the federal grant activity of
the Municipalitv ;f Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and is presented on the accrual

basis of accounting. The Municipality of Aibonito rePorting entit, is defined in Note I to the

Municipatiry's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in

accordnnce with the requirements ofOMB Circular A-1J3, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and

Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ fiorn

amounts presented in our used in the preparation ofthe basic financial statements.

Relationship to the Basic Financial Statements

Revenues and expenditures of the federal alvards are included in the Municipatiry's basic financial

statements within the Capital Projects Fund, the Proprietary Fund and th€ Other Governmental Funds.

The reconciliation between the expenditures in the basic financial statements and expenditures in the

Schedule ofExpenditurcs ofFederal Arvards is as follows:

Expenditures in the basic financial statements:

2.

Capital Projects Fund
Other Govemmental Funds
Proprietary Fund

Less: Non-federal expenditures

Total expenditures in the Schedule of
Federal Awards

$ 6,010,110
820,081
570,298

7,400,489
(5,182,940)

s2,217,549
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MUNICIPALITY of AIBoNlro
Report on Compliance and on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an

Audit ofrinancial dtatements performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards

June 30.2012

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipality ofAibonito
Aibonito, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe govemmental activities, each major fund,

and aggrcgate remaining funrl information of the Mun;cipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico as ofand for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Municipality's

basic financial statements and have issued our repon thereon dated December 5, 2012. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united states of America and

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmental Audilifig Stand'tds' issrcd by the

Comptroller General ofthe United States-

Internal Control Over Financial Reportine

Management ofthe Municipality is responsibte for establishing and maintaining effedive internal control

orer inancing reporting. In planning and performing our audil, w€ considered Municipality's internal

control over 
-financial 

i"po.ting u. a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion cn

thi effect-iveness_of the Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico intemal control

over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Municipality's intemal control over fi nancial reporting.

Our consideration ofintemal control over financial rcporting was for the limited purpos€ described in the

preceding paragraph and was not designed to identiry all deficiencies in intemal clntrol over financial

iepo.tin[t-hat migtrt te sigificant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no

urru."ni thut ali deficierrcies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified'

However, as described in the accompanying schedute of findings and questioned costs, we identified

certain deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses

and other defic;encies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A defciency in internal control exists lvhen the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assiSned functions, to prevent' or

detecfand conect misitatements on a timely basis- A material teakfiess is a deficiency, or a combination

ofdeficiencies, in intemal controt such that there is a reasonable possibilitv that a material misstatement

ofthe entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and conected on a timely basis We

consider thi deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be

material weaknesses as items 12-01 to l2-0i.
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Compliance aod Other Matters

As part ofobtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality ofAibonito of-the Commonwealth

of iuerto Rico fiiancial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its

comptiance with cenain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gBnt-agreem€nts, noncompliance

with which could have adirect and material effect on the determination of financial slatement amounts'

Ho*ever, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an obje'tive of our audit'

^"a ""|#irgfy, 
i. do'no, .*p.".. such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed instances of

noncomplianc'e or other matters that are required to be reported rndet Govenment Auditing Standards

and whiih are described in the accompanying Schedule of F;ndings and Questioned Costs as items 12-04

thru 12-08.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Municipality of Aibonito of the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, in a sepamte letter dated December 5, 2012.

The Municipalir) ofAibonito ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico response to the findings identified in

our audit is desciibed in the accompanying sche<i-rle of findings and questioned costs we did not audit

\4unicipaliry ' re(ponse and. accordingl). \ae e\presi no opinion on il.

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofthe Municipality's management, municipal

tegislature, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Toa Alta, Puerto Rico
December 5, 2012

Stamp No. 2596752
was affixed to the

original report.

W- ls'

78

E BENITEZ.JAIME, CPA-PSC



1[ BENITEZ-TAIME. CPA-PSC
El i-., -o "-"- *cJunrox-s o1o lu", 'ss -'uro'i'

COMMONWEALIH OT PUf,RTO RICO

MUNICTPALITY OF AIBONITO

Report on compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major

program and on Intemal Control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133

June 30,2012

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legislaturc
Municipalily of Aibonito
Aibonito. Puerto Rico

Compliance

We have audited the Municipality of Aibonito ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipality)

compliance with the types oacompliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A'133 Conpliance

Sup;kment th^l coultl_have direct and material effect on each of the Municipality of Aibonito of the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico major federal programs for the year ended June 30' 2012 Municipality's

major federal programs are identified in the Summary ofAuditor's Results Section ofthe accompanying

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requiremenls of laws, rcgulations,

contracts, and gran'ts applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
Municipality's .iunrg"."nt. our responsibility is to express an opinion on Municipality's compliance

based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits corttained in Gowmme t Auditing

Srdnld/ds, issu€d by the Comptroller General ofthe United States; and OMB Circular 4-133, '4trd'h o/
States, Lical Go"errments, and Non-PrctJit Organizatiotlr. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable ass,rance about whether noncompliance

*ith th" typ". oi 
"o.pliance 

requirements relerred to above that could have a direct and material effect

on a ma;oi federal piogram occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis' evidence about

Municipality's complia;ce with those requirements and performing such other prccedures as we

considered ;ecessary in the circumstances. we believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion. Our audit does not pmvide a legal determination of Municipality's compliance with those

requirements.

As described in items 12-04 through 12-08 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned

Costs, the Munic;pality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico' did not comply with

,"qri."."nt, ,"g".iing;ash management. reportinS, earmarking and Davis-Bacon Act that are applicab'e

to its Community Deielopment Block Grant State P.ogram. Compliance with such requirements is
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necessarJ, in our opinion, for the Municipality, to comply with the requirements applicable to that

program.

Compliance with such requirement is necessary, in our opinion, for the Municipality, to comply with the

requirements applicable to that program.

ln our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the Municipality of

Aibonito of the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance

requirements referreil to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal

programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Intemal Control Over Compli4!!9

Management of Municipality of Aibonito of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is responsible for

establishing and maintai;ing effective intemal control over compliance with the reql'irements of laws'

regulationf contracts, and $ants appl;cable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit,

wi considered Municipality,s intemal control o.ler compliance with the requiremeots that could have a

direct and material effict on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose

of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in

u""ordrn"" 
-r"ith OMB Circutar A_131, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness ofthe Municipality's intemal control over compliance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the

preceding paragraph and was not designed to identiry all deficiencies in intemal conrol over compliance

ihat m;gh1-be .igniRcant deficienci€s or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that

all defrciencies, significant deficiencies, or materiat weaknesses have been identifie'l However_ as

discussed below, w; identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to

be material weaknesses-

A deJiciency in intemal cc)ntrol over compliance exists when the design or op€ration of a control over

comiliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ofpeforming their assigled

functions, to prevent, or detect a;d correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal piogram on a timely b^sis. A materidl ,teakness in intemal control owr comPlionce is a

deficiency, 
-or 

combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance' such that there is a

reasonabL possibility that mat€rial noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program wiil not be ;revented, or detected and corected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies

in iitemal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedute of findings and questioned

costs as items l2-01, l2-02 and 12-03 to be material weaknesses.

A signifcanl clelcie q in internal control orer compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencCs, in intemai control over compliance $ith a Dpe oF compliance requirement of a federal

program that k less severe than a materiai *eakness in internal control o\er compliance, yet important

lno_ogh to...it attention by those charged with govemance. we coosider the deficiencies in intemal

cont;l over compliance described in the iccompanying schedule offindings and quesTioned costs as item

l2-04 to be a significant deficiency.

Municipality's rcsponses to the findings identified in our audit ar€ described in the accompanying

Scheduie c,f Findings and Questioned Costs. we did not audit the Municipalit,'s responses and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses-
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This report is intended solely for the information and use ofthe Municipality's management' Municipal

tegi.fut'u.", una f"o..ut^wariing agencies and pass{hrough entities and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Toa Alta, Puerto Rico
December 5,2012

Stamp No. 259675i
was afiixed to the

original report. W- ls'
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- Section I - Summary of Auditors' Resulls

Financial Statements

Type ofauditor's report issued: Qualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified? X yes 

- 

no

Signifi cant defi ciency (ies) identifi ed

;ot considered to be material weakness? 

- 

yes X none rcported

Noncompliance materialto financial statements X yes 

-no
noted?

- Federal Awards

Intemal Control over major programs:

- Material weakness (es) identified? X yes 

- 

no

Signifi cant defi ciency (ies) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? X yes 

- 

none reported

- Typ" ofaud;tor's report issued on compliance
For major programs: Qualified

- Any audit findings disclosed that are requircd

to be reported in accordance with

_ 
a,*ular A-133, Section .510(a)

Identifi cation of major programs:

X ves no

- CFDA Numbers

t4.182

14.228

Name ofFederal Proeram or Cluster

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments

Community Developmeot Block Grant/State - Administered Small

Cities Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
Between Type A and Type B Programs:

- Ardit"" qualified as low-risk auditee?

$300.000

yes Lno
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MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs

June 30,2012

Section II - Financial Stetement Findings

The current year findings and questioned costs were

discussed with the Municipality's management which
generally concurred with our comments and

recommendations- The Municipality of Aibonito will
respond to the following findings through the issuance of
a separate letter addressed to the Cognizant Agency.

12-OT DEFICIENCIES IN TIIE
ACCOUNTINC RTCORDS

UNIFORM ACCOUNTT\G SYSTEM ANI) OTIIER

The Uniform Accounting System (UAS) and the accounting records currently used by the Municipality

do oot have the necessary capabilities, procedures, intemal controls and records to ensure accurate

financial reporting and to prepare the Municipality's basic financial statements and fedeml programs'

reports in conformity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the united stat€s ofAmerica for

State and Local G;vernments (GAAP). The UAS is a system promulgated by the OIfice of the

Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of Pue(o Rico (OCAM, by its Spanish acronyms), a govemmental

entity created by law to provide technical assistance to the municipalities of Puerto Rico in several

administralive and fiscal maflerq.

The Municipality's UAS mostly provides for the recording of revenue collections, disbursements and

other limiteA tmnsactions. In addition, the accounting records are not fully integrated, and a double entry

system is not generally followed. Accounting records are maintained on the cash basis and budgetary

accounting bases (two accounting bases that differ significantly from GAAP) and do not comPly with

Statement No. 34 of the Govemmental Accounting Slandards Board (GASB 34), as amended.

The following specific additional conditions wer€ noted in relation to the UAS ofthe Municipality:

. Accounting transactions are currently accounted for simultaneously through manual and

computeri;ed accounting systems for which no reconciliation procedures are made among them,

incl;ding the accounting records currently used by federal programs which are not reconciled

with the UAS. The balance sheet accounts in the UAS are not reconciled and adjusted to conform

them to the Municipality's audited basic financial statements.

. The UAS does not have the capabilities of: (l) recording and processing alltypes ofcapital asset

transactions, principally the accounting of depr€ciation and amortization expense, (2) recording

and processing all transactions related to revenues susceptible to accrual (accounts receivable)

and,-(3) reconting and processing transactions related to long-term debt, including bonds and

notes payable. obligations under capital leases, reseftes for federal cost disallowances, legal

claims and judgments, compensated absences, etc.

.Noadequateyear-€ndclosingprocedutesaremadetoaccountforalltmnsactionsaffectingall
funds.
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. No adequate segregation is made between items rcpresenting actual accounts payable and those

."p."."niing oui.tu-nding encumbrances. Accordingly, materjal amounts ofunrecorded liabilities

are generally recoided at fiscal year_end.

. The management of the federal programs administered by the Municipality maintains separate

accountin;records for each federal program, which are not reconciled wilh the UAS (the official

accounting system of the Municipality).

. No adequate and complete accounting records are kept for inter-fund balances and transact;ons'

. The audit adjustments resulting fiom Single Audits are not completely posted i0 the UAS

The basic iinanciat statements of the Municipalit) must be prepared using the financial information

obtained from various municipal departments and accounting records outside ofthe official UAS, and

from information obtained from regulators and independent third part;es. In addition, the Department of
Finance does not maintain accounting records and trorking papers supporting the balances and

disclosures reported in the basic financial statements, principally those related to government-wide

financial repodng.

The Department of Finance does not maintain accounting records supporting the following procedures

performed as part ofthe preparation ofthe basic financial statements ofthe Municipalit):

. The conversion of accounting records from the cash basis of accounting to the modified accrual

basis ofaccounting used by governmental funds;

. The conversion of go,remmental funds from the modified accrual basis to the accrual basis of
accounting used by govemmenlwide financial statements; and

. Working papers and anatyses of significant balances reported in th€ basic financial statements,

such as capital assets, accounts receivable (municipal licenses, grants and contributions, etc ),
deferred revenues, accounts payable, and long_term obl;gations (for which the geneml practice is

to rely upon the notificationa received from the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico,

the Puerto Rico Treasury Department, the Federal Covemment and the Municipal Revenue

Collection Center for the balance ofits outstanding debt andthe withholding for its debt serv;ce)'

CRITERIA;

Article 8.010(b) of LawNo.81 ofAugust 30, 1991, known astheA tono ous MmiciPalities Act of
PrelroR,co(La$No.81),statesthattheMunicipalitymustmaintainitsfundaccountinginaccordance
with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as promulgated

by the Governiental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the National Committee on Govemmental

Accounting (NCGA) and the 
-Covemmental 

AccountiDS, Auditing and Financial Reporting book

(commonly known as Blue Book).

In addition, Article 8.0i0(c) of La$ No. 8l states that uniform accounting system used by the

Municipality must: (l) produce reliable repo(s and financial statements, (2) provide complete
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information about the results of operations of the Municipality, and (3) include the necessary intemal

controls to account all funds, capital assets and other assets of the Municipality'

Due to the conditions referred to above, the preparation ofthe Municipality's basic financial statements as

of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20i2 was more difficult and less efficient than would have been

in o.din"ry.i."r..tun.es. A significant amount ofadjusting entries had to be made-to the financial data

and reports processed throLrgh the UAS in order to properly account for unrecorded transactions and to

conect tmnsactions recordea in the wrong accounting period. Since the accounts and other accounting

records of the UAS are not designed to provide all the information necessary to prepare the

Municipality's basic financial statem;nts, the Municipality had to obtain and process financial data ftom

several sou;ces outside the UAS. These conditions represent material weaknesses in the Municipality's

intemal controls over financial reportinS.

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

These conditions occu(ed because the accounting system currently used by the Municipality has not been

updated in ov€r 15 years and, accordingly, the Mllnicipality has not implemented an accounting system in

compliance with thi cunent accounting model established by GASB Statement No. J4, as amended Tle
continued failure to have an adequate accounting system does not allow the Municipality to have timely

and accurate financiat informatio; for its decision making process. In addition, financial reports prepared

may have errors or omissions that will affect future financial decisions. Another effect is the use of
inaccurate financial information as a base for the preparation of annual budgets, which, therefore, may

result in budgetary compliance problems.

RNCOMMENDATION:

We recommend the Municipality to explore different altematives for the implementation of a new

accounting system in compli;nce with all applicable federal and local laws and regulations- This process

should iniluie only accounting systems that will enable the Municipality to prepare its basic financial

statements in a tim;ly manner;nd in conformity with CAAP. The systems to be evaluated must provide

the necessary financial information that will serve as the basis for the effective conirol of )"evenues'

disbursements, assets and liabilities, and the reponing of such items in the Municipality's financial

statements, including:

. The implementat;cn ofa double entry accounting system, the inte$ation ofall subsidiary ledgers

and the reconciliation with the records maintained for fedeml firnds;

.ThepreparationofperiodicfinancialreportstobesubmittedtotheDirectorofFinance.the
Mayor, the lvlunicipal Legislature and the federal grantors; and

. Adequate training to all accounting personnel to improve the understanding ofthe system and to

promote operational effi ciency

The Department of Finance must establish and document new accounting policies and procedures

address; to correct the non-compliance situations referred to above. Accounting policies and procedures

shalt be promulgated by an appropriate level ofmanagement to emPhasize their importance and authority'
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The documentalion of such accounting policies and procedures shall be updated periodically according to

a predetermined schedule.

12-02 DEFICIENCIES IN ACCOI]NTING RXCORDS OF CAPITAL ASSETS

The Municipality does not have and effective system to account for the accurate recording of fixed assets.

There are no intemal controls to ensure that all capitalizable expenditures and property dispositions are

recorded in the capital assets subsidiary ledger. A significant portion of the real property, personal

property and infias;ucture acquired or constructed with federal and locat fllnds is not currently rccorded

in ite 
"upitut 

assets subsidiary ledger. Accordingly, the Municipality has not maintained complete and

adequate records over capital assets.

The Municipality has not p€rformed periodical physical inventories ofits capital assets (realproperty, and

infiastructuie). As part ofour intemal control and substantive tests, we noted that the Municipality has

not organizeal and performed a physical inventory during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 lor the

aboveientioned assets. Accodingly, the capital assets recorded in the accomPanying statement of net

assets do not include seve.al items of the real property and the inliastructure assets, which should be

reported as part of the capital assets of the Municipality according to Statement No' 34 of the

Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 34), as amended, Basrc Finoncial Statements - and

MantTgenent's Discussion atd A alysis fot State and Local Governments

The following additional conditions were noted in relation to capital assets:

. The Municipality's capital asset subsidiary ledger is not reviewed or updated on a regular basis

for the purposes of idintirying and removing those irems that have been impaired, taken out of
service or provide no luture benefit. As a result, the capital assets subsidiary ledger does not

accurately provides sufficient and competent evidence ofthe existence, ownership and valuation

ofthe capital assets owned by the Municipality.

r The Municipality does not have formal accounting and control proced rcs and policies to ensure

compliance with the capital assets requirements estabtished by GASB No. 34 and Statement No'

42 ofthe Govemmental Accounting Standards Bo d, Accolnling and RePorling-for Impairments

olCapital Assets and Insurance Recovefies (CASB No. 42).

. The subsidiary ledger of capital assets is not periodically reconciled with the property subsidiary

ledgers maintained by the Municipality's several individual federal financially assisted pro$ams'

CRITERIA:

Article 9.002 of LawNo.81 ofAugust 30, 1991, known as the,4,/rono ous Mut icipolities Act o-f Prcrto

nico (Law No. 81), states that all municipalities must prepare and maintain an updated subsidiary ledger

(rccord) ofall real properties.

In addition, Chapter VII, Section 2i, ofthe Re8z1d, ion fot Municipol Adm,,7s,/d'io', requires that each

Municipality must maintain an adequate cootrol of capital assets through annual physical inventories ln

addition, any diflerences tetween physical inventory amounts and subsidiary records must be investigated

and adjusted. Considering that according to accounting records of the Municipality, the capital assets
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represent the most significant assets ofthe Municipality, there is a significant sk ofrinauthorized use or

di;position of capitil assets because there are no adequate intemal controls in place to ensure

accountability ofcapital assets by department or federal program.

Chapter VII, Sections l, 4, 14. 15 and 21 of the Regulation .for Municipal Administntion establish the

following guidelines regarding property management:

. section 3 establishes that the Finance Director is responsible for the accountability ofthe capital

assets acquired by the Municipaliq through purchases or donat;ons.

. Section 4 establishes that the Municipal Propety Administrator shall be responsible to the Mayor

and the Finance Director for the direct administration, use and maintenance ofthe entire real and

personal properft- owned by the Municipality.

. Section l4(l) establishes that all municipal property shall be numbered and identified as to

ownership by the Municipal Prop€rty Administrator.

. Section l5(1) establishes that the Municipal Property Adminishator is responsible for accurately

maintaining the central properry records.

. Section 21(c) establishes that management shall write-off from the property records all property

and equipmenl sold or disposed of when certified by the Intemal Auditor of the Municipality

upon determination that such disposal is adequate.

CAUSE AND EFFECT:

These instances of non-compliance occured because the Propert, Division of the Municipality has not

enforced the requirement to perform a capital assets inventory and to ensure the prcper accountability of
capital assets during the fiscal year ended June i0, 2012 Accordingly, the Municipality's intemal

controls in place ovir cap;tal assets are not designed to effectively account for cap;tal assets, since it do

not allow f;r the reconciliation of detailed property records with the general ledger. These inadequate

property internal controls may expose the Municipatity to questioned or disallowed costs by the federal

govemment for Iost or stolen propenl_. This condition represents a mateial we'kness in the

Municipality's intemal controls over financial reporting.

Furthermore, this situation represents a significant risk of loss of capital assets because there is a lack of
accountability for acquired c;pital assets. Any federally funded capital assets lost would need to be

repaid to the federal government with municipal fiinds.

RECOMMINDATION:

A physical inventory of the Municipality's capital assets should b€ taken as soon as possible and

subsequently on annual basis. Physical inventory amounts should be reconciled with the capital assets

recorded in the subsidiary ledgers. Furthermore, the Mayor may issue an executive order to require

compliance with this requirement. For these purposes, the Prop€rry Division ofthe Municipality must

.eqrire from each Municipal Department that acquires or manage capital assets to submit a rcport

including a full description of the asset, location, us€, source of funds used to acquire the asset'
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responsible personnel, cost and any other pertinent data required by state and local regulations This

information should be reconciled with the monthly disbursements (capital outlays) made against the

budgetary accounts used for property acquisitions. Sales or odrer dispositions must also be made only

upoi apiroval ofthe Municipal iroperty Arlministrator and the Finance Director. and should be carried

out by persons other than the users and through public announcements or bids.

We also recommend that the subsidiary ledger of capital assets be updated on a monthly basis for the

write-off of non-operational, fully depriciated, or impaired items. Having such a procedure in place will

ensure that the Municipality haj an accurate record of its capital assets and will ensure that gains and

losses on disposals are recorded in the proper accounting period

We also recommend that the subsidiary ledger shall be periodically reconciled with the property

subsidiary ledgers maintained by the Mun;cipality's several individual federalprogmms'

To provide gr€ater conhol over the recording of capital asset additions and rctirements, we also

recommend tlhe Municipality to maximize the use of the Assetmax software package to automate the

recording of capital a;sets along with automatically computing depreciation expense for financial

repo.tin[ purposis. The use of such software package would improve the ovemll efiiciency within the

accounting function and allow for departmental reporting of depreciation expense, including federal

programs.

12-03 LACK OF MOMTORING AND FRAUD PRX}tsNTION ACTIW ES

As part of our evaluation of intemal controls ofthe Municipality we noted that the Municipality have not

designed, documented nor placed in operations specific intemal controls and procedures designed to

prevint fraud and certain O?es ofmisappropriation of assets, including certain situations that may lead to

material inadequate financial reporting. In addition, does not keep verifiable records of the results of
monitoring activities perfo..ed to avoid embezzlement and the identification and evaluation of the

different 
-types of fraud risk factors associated with the Municipality's core processes The

aforementioned conditions represent material weaknesses in the Municipality's intemal confols over

financial repoting.

CRITERIA:

Article 6.004 of Law No. 8I of August 30, 1991,knownasthelrlo omous Municipalities Act ofPuerto

]Rico (Law No. 8l), states the Municipality shall perform interventions, audits and monitoring activities

over all municipal operations financed with ptlblic funds, including: (l) the acquisition, use and

disposition of c;pital assets, (2) transactions and oPerations of all administrative units (municipal

departments), and (3) all accounis, records, books, contracts, budgets and any other financial activities'

CAIISE AND EFFECT:

These conditions arose by the lack of effective controls and procedures for the evaluation of significant

risk factors in all municiial areas, the lack of proper planning ofcontinued monitoring activities, and the

lack ofproper allocation ofhuman resources and iime schedules to p€rform the activities required by law'

These coniitions, if not conecteal, may incrcase the risk of instances of material unforeseen errors and

iftegularities that may not be detected in a timely manner by the current intemal controls of the

Municipaliry.
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RECOMMENDATION:

_ We also recommend the Municipality to prepare a manual of policies and procedures specifically
designed to prevent and detect fraud. The Municipality should also keep formal documentation of ail
fraud prevention and monitoring activities performed by management, including the identification and
evaluation of all fraud risk factors. Fraud risk assessments should be reviewed periodically to consider* 
changes in the operating policies ofthe Municipality and the conhol environment.
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Section III - F€deral Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Prosram FindingsNoncompliance Recommendations
AllFederalPrograms 12-04 FINANCIALREPORTING

Ouestioned Cost

Statement of Condition:

Our review of the Single Audit Reporting Package and
Data Collection Form lor each of rhe r\lo prior years
submitted to Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC),
disclosed that one year was submitted after the required
submission date. as detailed below-

E!d!d
iune 30, 2010

Criteria:

Due
Date
March 31,2011

Date
Submitted

Past Due
Davs

.l!ne 20, 2011 81days

According to OMB Circular A-133 section 320, Report
Submission, the audit shall be completed and the data
collection form described and reporting package shall be
submifted within the earlier of30 days after receipt ofthe
auditor's report(s), or nine months after the end of the
audit period, unless a longer period is a$eed to in
advance by the cognizant or oversight agency for audit.
Unless restricted by law or regulation, the auditee shall
make copies available for public inspection.

Cause and Effect:

This condition occurred because the Municipality has not
adopted adequate intemal controls and procedures

designed to ensure the timely submission of progftms
rcports and the lack of adequate training and superl,,ision
of rhe municipal employees in charge of the preparation
of the aforementioned reports.

This condition, if not conected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances of matedal non-compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the Prognm.

R€commendation:

The Municipality should improve existing procedures to
ensure the timely submission of the Single Audit
Reporting Package and Data Collect;on Form, in order
to comply with Federal regulation. AIso, the
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I indines Noncompliance Recommendation5

M'rnicipality should consider implementing a reporting
calendar to maintain all personnel aware ofthe reporting
deadlines of each federal financial report. This will
provide an additional rool to help the Mun;cipality in
complying with the federal regulation.

12-05 FtrDERAL CASH MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Statement of Condilion:

The Municipality has not established effective cash
manag€ment procedures. During our review of the
drawdowns performed during the year, we noted the
following deficiency:

a. The Municipality performed 69 drawdowns during
the fiscal year 201l-2012 amounting to $648,161. For
52 drawdowns amounting to $348,329 or (75%) the
disbursements related to the funds requested has a delay
of 3 days or more benveen the funds receiving date and
the disbursing date.

Criteria:

Fedeml regulations rcquire that Grantee shall conform to
the standards applicable to advances from Federal
agencies. Amounts requested should be limited to the
Programs immediate cash needs.

OCAM grant agreement requires that "the Municipality
should maintained requested firnds from OCAM for a
period no longerthan three (3) days"

Cause and Effect:

This condition arose because the Municipality has not
implemented specific intemal confols and procedures
designed to minimize the time elapsed between the time
when drawdowns are made and the subsequmt time
when disbursement of federal funds are carried out. This
condition increases the risks of avoidable interest
income and instances of idle cash balances in the
program's bank accounts.

Ouestioned Cost

NONE
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Findin gsNoncomoliance Recommendations

Recommendation:

In accordance with Federal regulations, the Municipality
should estimate drawdown's ofFederal funds as closely
as possible to the actual disbursements. Also, the
Municipality should established procedures to minimize
the time elapsing between drawdowns and
disbursements.

12-06 DA\'IS-BACON ACT

Statement of Condit;on:

As part of our audit tests we selected three (100%)
constmction projects out of 3 projects executed during
the fiscal year. The construction projects were the
following:

Instalar material sint6tico en la pista atl€tica
Femando Santiago

Repavimentaci6n de varios caminos municipales
Extensi6n San Luis

. Restauraci6n Casa Degetau

The following exceptions were noted during our
€xamination ofthe projects filesi

(a) In three (3) 100% of project files, there were no
evidence of the required preconstruction conference.

(b) In two (2) 6'70/0 of project file, there were no
evidence that the contractor submitted weekly the
required certifi ed payrolls.

Criteria:

Non-federal entities shall include in their consffuction
contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act a requirement
that the contmctor or sukontractor comply with the
requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act and the DOL
regulations (29 CFR part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions
Applicable to Contacts Goveming Federally Financed
and Assisted Construction"). This includes a

Ouestioned Cost

NONE
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Findines,Noncomoliance Recommendations

requirement for the contractor or subconfactor to submit
to the non-Federal entity weekly, for each week in which
any contract work is performed, a copy of the palToll
and a statement of compliance (certified payrolls) (29
CFR sections 5-5 and 5.6).

Cause and Effect:

This cond'tion arose because the Municipality has not
implemented specific intemal controls and procedures
de.igned to carD our eflecri!e moniroring acri\ ities orer
contracto6 engaged in projects financed with federal
funds, including, but not limited to, the enforcement of
complianc€ with contractual clauses related to Davis-
Bacon Act and the training of municipal emp,oyees
about this law.

This condition, if not corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances ofmaterial non-compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the Program.

Recommendati.,n:

The Municipality should establish procedurcs to
ascertain that all documents submitted by the contractor
are reviewed and approved on a timely basis to ensure
compliance with labor standards.

12-07 EARMARXING RNQIIIRtrMENT

Statement of Condition:

As ofJune 30, 2012, the Municipality expended less than
70 percent of the lunds received by the state, over a
period of up to three years for activities that benefit low
aid moderate-income persons as required by the federal
regulations-

Criteria:

According to 24 CFR, 570.484 the State must certify
that, in the aggregate, not less than 70 percent of the
CDBG funds receiled by the state during a period
specified by the state, not to exceed three years, will be

Ouestioned Cost

NONE
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Program

SBGP
CFDA No. 14.228

COMI,IONWIALTH of PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AIBONITO

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs
June 30,2012

Findin gsNoncompli@lqRecommendations

used for activities that benefit persons of low and
moderate income.

Cause and Effect:

This condition arose because the Municipality has not
implemented specific intemal controls and procedures
designed to carrl our ellecli\e moniloring acliriries over
the management and use oF federal awards, including,
but not limited to, the enforcement of compliance with
the 70 percent limitation referred to above and the
training ofmunicipal employees about this regulation.

This condition, if not corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances of material non-compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the hogram.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should establish procedures to
ascertain that comply with the earmarking requirement
in accordance 

",ith 
24 CFR sections 570.484. The

Municipality should start the process to develop the
proposed projects as soon the grant agrcements are
received-

12.08 FINANCIALREPORTING

Statement of Condition:

Our review of the Single Audit Report submitted to
Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs
(OCAM), disclosed that it was submitted after the
required submission date. as delailed belo\\.

Ended

Ouestioned Cost

March 31, 2012

Date
Submitted
Aptil 25, 2072

NONE

D3r!
25 days

Due
Date

June 30,2011

Criteria:

According to OCAM grant agreement Single Audit
report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 must be
submitted to OCAM, no laterthan March 31.2012.
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Program

CoNIN'oNIvEALTH oF PUERT0 RICo
NIUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs
June 30.2012

Findinqs,Aloncomol iance Recommendations

Cause and Effect:

This condition occuned because the Municipality has not
adopted adequate intemal controls and procedures
designed to ensure the timely submission of progmm
rcports and the lack ofadequate training and supervision
of the municipal employees in charge of the preparation
of the aforementioned reports.

This condition, if not corrected, may increase the risk of
avoidable instances ofmaterial non-compliances with the
laws and regulations applicable to the Prcgram.

Recommendation:

The Municipality should improve existing procedures to
ensure the timely submission ofthe Single Audit Report,
in order to comply with Federal regulation. AIso, the
\4unicipaliq should consider implemenring a reponing
calendar to maintain all personnel aware ofthe reporting
deadlines of each federal financial report. This will
pmvide an additional tool to help the Municipality in
complying with the federal regulation.

Total Questioned Costs

Questioned egsf

NOIE
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CoUMoNVEALTH oF PUf,RTo tlrco
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Summary schedule of prior years audit findings
Fiscal Year 2010-2011

June 30,2012
The following schedule contains dre finding number and title of each of the findings included in the
Report on Compliance and lntemal Control Based on the Audit of the Geneml Purpose Financial
Statements for Performed in Accodance with Govemment Auditing Standards for the Fiscal Year ended
June 30,201l. Underthe heading Corrective Action Taken there willbe the follorving:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan $as fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the coftective action plan was partially implemented and the finding
repeated in fiscal vear 201 l-2012).

NR - Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 20 I I -20 I 2.

Finding
Number Title

I l-0t

I l-02

11-03

Correctiv€
Action
Taken

NR

NR

NR

Deficiencies in the uniforn accounting system and other
accounting records

Deficiencies in accounting records ofcapital assets

Lack ofmoniroring and fiaud pre\ention acli\ ities
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CoMMoNWEALTH of PUERTo fu Co
MUNICIPALITY oT AIBoNIIo

Summary schedule ofprior years audit findings
Fiscal Year 2010-2011

June 30,2012
The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each ofthe findings included in the
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Intemal Control over
Compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-13J for the FiscalYear ended June 30,2011. Under the
heading Corrective Action Taken there willbe the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the corrective action plao was partially implemented and the finding
repeated in fiscal year 2011-2012).

NR - Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 201 1-2012.

Finding
Number

1l-04

1l-05

lt-06

1t-07

1 l-08

Title

Corrective
Action
Taken

Financial Reporting

Equipment and real property management

Federal Cash Management System

Davis-Bacon Act

FinancialReporting

NR

FR

NR

NR

FR
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coMMoNwf,ALTH oF PUERTo RICo
MUNICIPALITY oF AIBoNITo

Summary schedule ofprior years audit findings
Fiscat year 2009_2010

June 30, 2012

The following schedule contains th€ finding number and title of each of the findings incruded in the
Report on compliance and Intemar contror Based on the Audit of the Generar 

-p,rpose 
Financial

statements for Performed in Accordance with Govemment Auditing standards for the Fiscal year ended
Jun€ 30, 2010. Under the heading Conective Acrion Taken there wiil be the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Panially resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was partially implemented and the finding
repeated in fiscal year 2011-20t 2).

NR - Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 2011-2012.

Corrective
Action
Taken

NR

FR

FR

NR

NR

Finding
Number

l0-0 t

l0-02

l0-03

I0-04

l0-05

Title

Deficiencies in the uniform accounting system and other
accounting records

Depositing ofcash receipts in bank accounts

Inactive and unnecessary funds and inactive bank accounts

Deficiencies in accounting records of capital assets

Lack ofmonitoring and liaud prevention activities
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CoMMoNwEALTH oF PUf,RTo RICo
MUNICIPALITY oT AIBoNITO

Summary schedule ofprioryears audit findings
Fiscal Year 2009-2010

June 30,2012

The following schedule contains the finding number and title of each of the findings included in the
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Intemal Control over
Compliance ;n accordance with OMB Circular A- 133 for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2010. Und€r the
heading Corr€ctive Action Taken there willbe the following:

FR - Fully resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented).

PR - Partially resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was panially implemented and the finding
repeated in fiscal year 2011-2012).

NR - Not resolved yet. Finding repeated in fiscal year 201 l-2012.

Finding
Number
r 0-06

10-07

10-08

r 0-0s

l0-10

t0-11

10-12

l0-13

l0-14

Tiile
Intemal Controls Information and communication

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment

Equipment and real property management

Fedeml Cash Management System

Fedeml Cash Management System

Davis-Bacon Act

Earmarking Requirement

Inadequate Documentation of Participant Files

Financial R€porting

Corrective
Action
Taken

FR

FR

FR

NR

FR

NR

NR

FR

NR
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